
Agenda\Audit and Standards Committee\19 September 2016

Division: Corporate 

Please ask for: Katharine Simpson

Direct Tel: 01276 707157

E-Mail: democratic.services@surreyheath.gov.uk

Surrey Heath Borough Council

Surrey Heath House
Knoll Road
Camberley

Surrey GU15 3HD
Telephone: (01276) 707100
Facsimile: (01276) 707177

DX: 32722 Camberley
Web Site: www.surreyheath.gov.uk

Friday, 9 September 2016
To: The Members of the AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

(Councillors: Rebecca Jennings-Evans (Chairman), Conrad Sturt (Vice Chairman), 
Rodney Bates, Edward Hawkins, Paul Ilnicki, Jonathan Lytle and Bruce Mansell)

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of the AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE will be held at  on Monday, 19 
September 2016 at 7.00 pm.  The agenda will be set out as below.

Please note that this meeting will be recorded.

Yours sincerely

Karen Whelan

Chief Executive

AGENDA
Pages

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit and Standards Committee 
meeting held on 28 June 2016.

3 - 6

3 Declarations of Interest  

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and 
non pecuniary interests they may have with respect to matters which are 
to be considered at this meeting.  Members who consider they may have 
an interest are invited to consult the Monitoring Officer or the Democratic 
Services Manager prior to the meeting.

4 2015/16 Financial Statements  

To consider a report setting out the audited Financial Statements for the 
2015/16 financial year and the External Auditor’s ISA260 Report for 
2015/16.

7 - 8

Public Document Pack



Agenda\Audit and Standards Committee\19 September 2016

a  ISA260 Audit Report 2015/16  

The External Auditor’s ISA260 report summarising the work carried out to 
discharge their statutory audit responsibilities is attached for consideration.

9 - 34

b  Statement of Accounts 2015/16  

The Council’s audited Statement of Accounts for the 2015-16 financial 
year is attached for consideration.

35 - 130

Date of Next Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee is scheduled to take 
place on Monday 28 November 2016 at 7pm.



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\25 July 2016

Minutes of a Meeting of the Audit and 
Standards Committee held at Council 
Chamber, Surrey Heath House on 25 
July 2016 

- Rebecca Jennings-Evans (Chairman)
+ Cllr Conrad Sturt (Vice Chairman in the Chair)

+
+
-
+

Cllr Dan Adams
Cllr Rodney Bates
Cllr Edward Hawkins
Cllr Paul Ilnicki

+
-
+

Cllr David Lewis
Cllr Jonathan Lytle
Cllr Bruce Mansell

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

Substitutes:  Cllr Dan Adams for Cllr Edward Hawkins
Cllr David Lewis for Cllr Rebecca Jennings-Evans

In Attendance: Sheena Adrian, Service Accountant (Capital & Assets & Treasury)
   Karen Limmer, Head of Legal
   Alex Middleton, Senior Auditor

1AS Minutes of Previous Meeting

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Audit and Standards Committee meeting held 
on 31 March 2016 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

2AS Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3AS External Audit- Financial Statements Audit Plan 2015/16

The Committee received a report setting out how the Council’s External Auditor’s, 
KPMG, planned to discharge its duties in relation to their audit of Surrey Heath 
Borough Council’s financial statements for 2015/16.

The two key objectives of the audit were to:

i. Provide an opinion on the Council’s financial statements
ii. Draw conclusions about the arrangements the Council had in place for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.

The audit had been completed and a satisfactory verdict had been returned.  A full 
update would be given to the Audit and Standards Committee at their meeting on 
19 September 2016.  The audit had identified two key risks, the first related to the 
valuation of land and buildings and the second related to new borrowing which 
occurred during the 2015/16 financial year. 

Public Document PackPage 3

Agenda Item 2 



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\25 July 2016

It was clarified that the valuation of council owned land and buildings was carried 
out by external surveyors and valuations were developed using CIPFA guidelines 
and industry standard formulae.

It was acknowledged that the requirement to report any uncorrected omissions or 
misstatements that were above £45,000 did appear to be punitively low however 
this level had been set following the difficulties that the Council had experienced 
with the implementation of the new financial management system during the 
previous financial year.

The Committee noted the report.

4AS Annual Governance Statement

The Committee considered a report setting out the draft Annual Corporate 
Governance Statement 2015/16.

There was a statutory requirement for the Council to produce an Annual Corporate 
Governance statement which reviewed the effectiveness of the Council’s control 
systems and formed part of the final accounts for each financial year.  The 
Statement set out the governance arrangements in place at the Council, 
addressed any key issues identified during the year and summarised progress 
made towards addressing any previously identified issues.

It was reported that the Council’s Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer 
considered the Council’s governance arrangements to be adequate and effective.  
Whilst no significant governance issues had been identified in 2015/16 a number 
of minor issues had been identified including the number of complex projects that 
the Council was involved with that were dependent on partnership working and 
these were being monitored through the planned work of the Council.

It was noted that the number of members on the Audit and Standards Committee 
was seven and not the fifteen stated in the Statement and this would be amended.

It was acknowledged that although there was a high level of awareness about data 
protection the implementation of an online training package had not gone as 
smoothly as had been anticipated and a number of Council staff still needed to 
complete mandatory data protection training.  It was agreed that a detailed report 
on data protection training would be brought to the Committee’s next meeting.

RESOLVED  that subject to the amendments noted the draft Annual Governance 
Statement be approved for sign off by the Council’s Leader and Chief Executive.

5AS Internal Audit Annual Report 2015-16

The Committee received a report summarising the work carried out by the 
Council’s Internal Audit function during the 2015/16 financial year.

Page 4



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\25 July 2016

It was reported that during the 2015/16 financial year, the internal audit function 
carried out 20 audits; eighteen of which were completed in line with requirements 
set out in the Annual Plan and two which were unscheduled audits.  The audits 
covered a wide range of services including ICT security arrangements, the 
Council’s Recruitment and selection processes, information governance, grounds 
maintenance, the financial controls in place at the Windle Valley Day Centre and 
the Council’s use of consultants and professional advisors.  The audit work had 
found that although the Council’s control systems were generally sound however 
areas of weakness that needed to be addressed had been identified and a total of 
51 recommendations were made as a result.  15 of these recommendations were 
classified as being essential (or high) and required immediate attention to address 
perceived substantial weaknesses.  

The Committee noted the ad-hoc work done by the Council’s Internal Audit 
Function for external organisations.  The Committee stressed that it was 
imperative that any further requests for help with audits from external 
organisations were carefully considered in order to ensure that the Council’s 
limited resources were not spread too thinly and the Council was not put at risk.

The Committee noted the report.

6AS Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the System of Internal Audit

The Committee received a report setting out the outcomes of the Council’s 
statutory annual review of the effectiveness of its system of internal audit for 
2015/16.

The review had been based on:
 The work programme of the Audit and Standards Committee and any 

decisions made by the Committee
 Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
 An external audit of the work carried out by Internal Audit
 Performance against agreed work plans

It was reported that the review had found that the Council’s internal audit systems 
were sound and internal control systems were working effectively and that 
recommendations identified in the 2014/15 review had been implemented.  The 
review had recognised that the continued pressure on resources across the 
Council could impact on the Council’s ability to deliver services and this was 
something that the Internal Audit function would need to be aware of and adapt to 
in the coming year.

The Committee noted the report.

7AS Annual Standards Report 2016

The Committee received the Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report.  The report 
included a summary of any key issues arising in relation to the Members’ Code of 

Page 5



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\25 July 2016

Conduct, an update on the appointment of Independent Persons to the Standards 
Committee and a forward look.

It was noted that the majority of issues raised with the Monitoring Officer during 
2015/16 related to planning matters and in particular when interests need to be 
declared.  Training sessions focused on decision making and standards issues 
have been held for all Borough council members.  Training sessions on a range of 
subjects including planning matters have also been held for Parish Councillors.

The Council has entered into a partnership arrangement with other Surrey 
Councils to appoint a pool of Independent Persons who can be called on in the 
event of a Standards Inquiry becoming necessary.  A meeting would take place in 
September to develop detailed plans for how the scheme would work.

Following their review of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation, the Governance 
Working Group would continue its review of the Council’s Constitution and a new 
Civic and Ceremonial Protocol was under development.

The Committee noted the report.

Chairman 

Page 6



Portfolio FinanceApproval of the 2015/16 Financial Statements 
and to receive the External Auditor’s Report 
(ISA260) for 2015/16 

Ward(s) Affected: All

Purpose  

To approve the audited Financial Statements for 2015/16 and to receive the External 
Auditors Report (ISO260) for 2015/16.

Background

1. Statutory regulations require that unaudited financial statements are published 
by the 30th June and the audited financial statements by the 30th September 
each year. Only the audited financial statements need to be formally approved 
by members. 

2. The unaudited financial statements were published on the Council’s website on 
the 28th June 2016 and it is the audited financial statements that are now being 
presented to this committee for approval. 

Financial Statements

3. The Financial Statements set out the Council’s financial performance for the 
year ended 31st March 2016 and are attached to this agenda as a separate 
document. 

ISA260 Audit Report

4. The Audit Commissions Code of Audit Practice requires the auditor to 
summarise the work they have carried out to discharge their statutory audit 
responsibilities together with any Governance issues identified. They are 
charged with reporting these to those charged with governance (The Audit and 
Standards Committee) at the time the final financial statements are considered. 
This report must also comply with the requirements of the International Auditing 
Standard 260 with regard to ‘Communication of audit matters to those charged 
with governance’. 

5. The auditors will be presenting their report at the meeting and it can be 
expected to cover the following areas:

 Proposed opinion on the financial statements, annual governance 
statement and audit differences

 Critical accounting matters
 Value for Money approach
 Key issues and recommendations arising from the audit

6. Members will have an opportunity to question the auditors about their report at 
the meeting. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4 



Key Issues

7. The Auditors propose to issue an “unqualified” opinion on both the financial 
statements and their value for money judgement.

8. The Auditors have recognised a significant improvement both in the timeliness 
of the financial statements and the quality compared to last year. This ahs been 
achieved due to the hard work of the finance team.

9. The Auditors have looked new significant audit risks, such as borrowing, and 
have been satisfied with the results.

10. There is only one recommended adjustment to the accounts which has an 
impact on the General fund and a small number of presentational amendments 
arising out of the audit. These are reflected in the set of financial statements 
presented for approval at this meeting. 

11. The finance team would like to acknowledge the support and advice given by 
the external audit team during their visit this year. 

Options

12. The committee can accept or reject the auditor’s report and/or accounts. 
However these actions may have implications in respect of the auditor signing 
off the Council’s financial statements

Resources Implications

13. There only resource implication arises due to audit fees. These are £41,900 
which is the scale fee approved by the PSAA (Public Sector Audit Authority). 

Recommendation

14. The Committee is advised to RECEIVE the audited financial statements for 
2015/16 and RESOLVE that the Chairman of the Committee APPROVES the 
Financial Statements on behalf of the Council

Background Papers: None

Contact: Kelvin Menon 01276 707257

e-mail: kelvin.menon@surreyheath.gov.uk

Page 8

mailto:kelvin.menon@surreyheath.gov.uk


External Audit
Report 
2015/16
Surrey Heath Borough Council
—
September 2016

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4a 



2© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

The contacts at KPMG
in connection with this
report are:

Neil Hewitson
Director

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 07810 404843
Neil.Hewitson@kpmg.co.uk

Satinder Jas
Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 07979 612771
Satinder.Jas@kpmg.co.uk

Tanny Datta
Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 07468 740825
Tanushree.Datta@kpmg.co.uk

Contents

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third
parties. Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the responsibilities of auditors begin
and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the
law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Neil Hewitson,
the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work under our
contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (on 0207 694 8981, or by email to andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your
complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3H.

Page

Report sections

1. Introduction 3

2. Headlines 4

3. Financial statements 6

4. VFM Conclusion 13

Appendices

1. Key issues and recommendations

2. Audit differences

3. Materiality and reporting of audit differences

4. Declaration of independence and objectivity

P
age 10

mailto:Neil.Hewitson@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:Satinder.Jas@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:Tanushree.Datta@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk


3© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This document summarises:

— The key issues identified 
during our audit of the 
financial statements for 
the year ended 31 March 
2016 for the Authority; 
and

— Our assessment of 
the Authority’s
arrangements to secure 
value for money.

Scope of this report

This report summarises the key findings arising from:

— Our audit work at Surrey Heath Borough Council (‘the 
Authority’) in relation to the Authority’s 2015/16 financial 
statements; and

— The work to support our 2015/16 conclusion on the Authority’s
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources (‘VFM conclusion’).

Financial statements

Our External Audit Plan 2015/16 provided to management in April 
2016, set out the four stages of our financial statements audit process.

This report focuses on the third stage of the process: substantive
procedures. Our onsite work for this took place between July and
August 2016.

We are now in the final phase of the audit, the completion stage.
Some aspects of this stage are also discharged through this report.

VFM Conclusion

Our External Audit Plan 2015/16 explained our risk-based 
approach to VFM work. We have now completed the work to 
support our 2015/16 VFM conclusion. This included:

— assessing the potential VFM risks and identifying the residual 
audit risks for our VFM conclusion; and

— Considering the results of any relevant work by the Authority 
in relation to these risk areas;

Structure of this report

This report is structured as follows:

— Section 2 summarises the headline messages.

— Section 3 sets out our key findings from our audit work in 
relation to the 2015/16 financial statements of the Authority 
and the fund.

— Section 4 outlines our key findings from our work on the 
VFM conclusion.

Our recommendations are included in Appendix 1. We have also 
reviewed your progress in implementing prior recommendations 
which have been detailed on page 24 onwards.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and 
Members for their continuing help and co-operation throughout our 
audit work.

Introduction
Section one

Control 
EvaluationPlanning Substantive 

Procedures Completion

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

P
age 11



4© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This table summarises the 
headline messages for the 
Authority. Sections three and 
four of this report provide 
further details on each area.

Headlines
Section two

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Proposed 
opinion

We anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion on the Authority’s financial statements by 30 September 2015. We will 
also report that your Annual Governance Statement complies with guidance issued by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007.

Audit 
adjustments

Our audit has identified a total of ten audit adjustments. One audit adjustment has an impact on the bottom line of the 
CIES and Balance Sheet which also requires an adjustment to the General fund:
• Decrease of £178k in CIES
• Increase of £178k of Creditors in Balance Sheet
• Increase of £178k of MIRS
• Decrease of £178k in General Fund
We have included a list of significant audit adjustments in Appendix two. All were adjusted by the Authority.

Key 
financial 
statements 
audit risks

We identified the following key financial statements audit risks in our 15/16 External audit plan issued to management in 
April 2016.
— Auditing standards require us to make a rebuttable presumption of a risk of fraudulent revenue recognition. We do 

not consider this to be a significant risk for local authorities as there are limited incentives and opportunities to 
manipulate the way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate specific work into our 
audit plan in this area over and above our standard fraud procedures.

— Management override of controls: Professional standards require us to communicate the fraud risk from 
management override of controls as significant because management is typically in a unique position to perpetrate 
fraud due to its ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

— Valuation of land and buildings: The material nature of these and the judgment involved in the carrying amounts of 
property assets. Borrowings: The Authority took out four new borrowings in the 2015/16 financial year, with a total 
value of £17.9m. As this is the first time the Authority have taken out such an amount we considered this a 
significant risk in relation to the disclosure requirements on the financial statements.

We have worked with officers throughout the year to discuss these key risk(s) and our detail findings are reported in 
section 3 of this report. There are no matters of any significance arising as a result of our audit work in these key risk areas.

P
age 12



5© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Headlines
Section two

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Accounts 
production 
and audit 
process

We received a complete set of draft accounts on 29 June 2016 in accordance with the DCLG deadline. The accounting policies, accounting estimates and 
financial statement disclosures are in line with the requirements of the Code.
We noted a significant improvement in the quality of the accounts and the supporting working papers. Officers dealt efficiently with audit queries and the 
audit process has been completed within the planned timescales.
The Authority has improved its process for drafting the accounts and the quality of associated supporting working papers has increased, including the 
implementation of eight out of 10 prior year recommendations. An interim appointment was made to manage these processes. We understand that a 
permanent appointment will be made to maintain the step change that benefitted the 2015/16 accounts production. Our queries were dealt with efficiently 
by officers and the audit process has been completed within the planned timescales.
As in previous years, we will debrief with the closedown team to share views on the final accounts audit. Hopefully this will lead to further efficiencies in the 
2016/17 audit process. In particular we thank officers who were available throughout the audit visit to answer our queries.

VFM
conclusion 
and risk areas

We identified the following VFM risks in our 2015/16 external audit plan issued to management in April 2016:
— Capacity, capability and structure of the finance team: The 2014/15 VFM conclusion was qualified in light of capacity and capability challenges within 

the finance function which were compounded by pressures in the resource model of the team. These challenges resulted in late submission of the draft 
accounts and the Whole of Government Accounts pack as well as the Authority missing the filling deadline for its 2014/15 annual report and accounts. 
Due to this we agreed ten recommendations in our 2014/15 ISA260 report, including six high priority recommendations. We therefore raised this as a 
risk for the 2015/16 audit. We have raised a medium priority recommendation going forward which we have detailed in Appendix one.

We worked with officers throughout the year to discuss the VFM risk (see section 4). Although the implementation of new processes reduced this as a 
matter for 2015/16, we raised a recommendation in respect of the planned Finance restructure and the need to maintain the enhancements secured during 
the 2015/16 accounts production process. We have concluded that the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified VFM conclusion by 30 September 2016.

Completion Our audit is now complete.
You are required to provide representations on matters such as going concern and whether transactions in your accounts are legal and unaffected by fraud. 
We provided a draft of this representation letter to the Section 151 Officer on 22 August 2016. We draw your attention to the requirement in our 
representation letter for you to confirm to us that you have disclosed all relevant related parties to us. We are asking for specific representations on:
— Land and Buildings valuation: We have requested that the Board provide specific representation on the valuation of Land and Buildings (£43.6m) 

included in the financial statements  and confirms it is appropriate and reflects all relevant factors impacting upon valuation.
We confirm that we have complied with requirements on objectivity and independence in relation to this year’s audit of the Authority’s financial statements.

P
age 13



6© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Our audit has identified a 
total of ten audit adjustments.

The impact of these 
adjustments is to:

— Decrease the balance on
the general fund account
as at 31 March 2016 by
£178k;

— Increase the deficit on the 
provision of services for 
the year by £178k; and

— Decrease the net worth of 
the Authority as at 31 
March 2016 by £178k.

Proposed audit opinion

We anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion on the financial 
statements following approval of the Statement of Accounts by the 
Audit and Standards Committee on 19 September 2016.

Audit differences

In accordance with ISA 260 we are required to report uncorrected 
audit differences to you. We also report any material misstatements 
which have been corrected and which we believe should be 
communicated to you to help you meet your
governance responsibilities. There are no uncorrected adjustments.

The final materiality (see Appendix two) level for this year’s audit 
was set at £900k. Audit differences below £45k are not 
considered significant.

Our audit identified a total of ten audit differences, we have 
detailed all significant adjustments in Appendix two. It is our 
understanding that these will be adjusted in the final version of the 
financial statements.

The tables on the right illustrate the total impact of audit 
differences on the Authority’s movements on the General Fund for 
the year and balance sheet as at 31 March 2016.

The net impact on the General Fund as a result of audit 
adjustments is to increase the balance as at
31 March 2016 by £178k.

Proposed opinion and audit differences
Section three

£

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Movements on the general fund 2015/16

£m Pre-
audit

Post-
audit

Ref 
(App.2)

Deficit on the provision of services 3,792 3,970 1
Adjustments between accounting basis and (4,460) (4,460) 1
funding basis under Regulations
Transfers to/from earmarked reserves (973) (973) 1
Decrease in General Fund (2,398) (2,220)

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2016

£m Pre-audit Post-
audit

Ref 
App.2

Property, plant and equipment 48,841 48,841 1
Other long term assets 37,289 37,289
Current assets 23,130 23,130
Current liabilities (11,883) (12,061)
Long term liabilities (49,720) (49,720)
Net worth 47,657 47,479 1
General Fund (2,398) (2,220)
Other usable reserves (45,259) (45,259)
Unusable reserves (27,253) (27,253)
Total reserves (47,657) (47,479)

P
age 14



7© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

We anticipate issuing an 
unqualified audit opinion in 
relation to the Fund’s 
financial statements, as 
contained both in the 
Authority’s Statement of 
Accounts by 30 September 
2016.

The wording of your Annual 
Governance Statement 
complies with guidance 
issued by CIPFA/SOLACE 
in June 2007.

Of the other audit adjustments we have identified, the most 
significant in monetary value are as follows:
— Vehicles, Plant & Equipment: Cost / Valuation At 31 March 

2016: To be changed from £8,258k to £4,402k.
— Vehicles, Plant & Equipment: Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment At 31 March 2016: To be changed from (£5,906k) 
to (£2,050k)

— Note 34.4: Fair value of assets and liabilities – Borrowings 
Liabilities for which fair value is not disclosed: The total value 
in the balance sheet is £43,569k. The value in the note 
should state this value. The variance is £1.76m.

The adjustments above are presentational only and have no effect 
on the bottom line of the core financial statements.
In addition we identified presentational adjustments which were 
required to ensure that the accounts are compliant with the Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015/16 (‘the Code’). We understand that the Authority will be 
addressing these.
Annual governance statement
We reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and 
confirmed that:
— It complies with Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government: A Framework published by CIPFA/SOLACE; and
— It is not misleading or inconsistent with other information we 

are aware of from our audit of the financial statements.

Proposed opinion and audit differences
Section three

£

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

P
age 15



8© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

We have worked with the 
Authority throughout the year 
to discuss significant risks 
and key areas of audit focus.

This section sets out our 
detailed findings on 
those risks.

In our External Audit Plan 2015/16, presented to management in April 2016, we identified the significant risks affecting the Authority’s
2015/16 financial statements. We have now completed our testing of these areas and set out our evaluation following our substantive
work. The table below sets out our detailed findings for each of the risks that are specific to the Authority.

Significant audit risks
Section three

£

Significant Risk 1

— Valuation of Land and Buildings: £43.6m (PY £48.5m)

Local Authorities exercise judgement in determining the fair value of the different classes of assets held and the methods used to 
ensure the carrying values recorded each year reflect those fair values. In accordance with the suggested accounting policies provided 
by the CIPFA code of practice, the Authority achieves this by performing: an annual review for impairment; a full annual valuation over 
Investment Property; and a full valuation in not more than five yearly intervals over all other land and buildings. The Authority undertake 
a 20% valuation of assets each year to ensure all assets are valued within a five year cycle.

As part of our work we:

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

• reviewed the revaluation basis and consider its appropriateness;
• reviewed management’s challenge to any of the valuations and differences between the valuation report and the financial 

statements;
• undertook work to understand the basis upon which any impairments to land and buildings have been calculated and test 

associated assumptions;
• assessed the independence and objectivity of the external valuers engaged by Management; and
• assessed the review undertaken by the Authority including the assurances they obtained from their valuers (Wilks Head and Eve) to 

confirm that there were no material changes in the fixed asset values from the date of valuation (December 2015) to the Authority’s 
reporting year end date.

Our review confirmed there was no matters arising from our work which we would like to bring to your attention.

P
age 16



9© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Significant audit risks
Section three

£

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Significant Risk 2

— Borrowings: £17.9m (PY £0.0m)

The Council undertook four new loans for the 2015/16 financial year. Three were from the PWLB and one from M3 LEP. The loans were taken out in relation to the Authority 
investing in the development of economic growth for the future. As this was the first time the Authority have taken loans we considered this to be a significant risk due to its 
material nature and ensuring they were correctly disclosed in the financial statements.

As part of our work we:

• Confirmed the PWLB loans to the PWLB website;
• Obtained third party confirmation for the fourth loan; and
• Reviewed the disclosure for the borrowings in the financial statements to confirm it was included in line with statutory guidance.
Our review of the value of the loans and the treatment the Authority followed when including them in their financial statements confirmed we have not identified any significant 
issues or matters which which we are required to report on.

Fraud risk of revenue recognition

Professional standards require us to make a rebuttable presumption that the fraud risk from revenue recognition is a significant risk. In our External Audit Plan 2015/16 we 
reported that we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Local Authorities as there is unlikely to be an incentive to fraudulently recognise revenue. This is still the case. 
Since we have rebutted this presumed risk, there has been no impact on our audit work.

Management override of controls

Professional standards require us to communicate the fraud risk from management override of controls as significant because management is typically in a unique position to 
perpetrate fraud because of its ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating
effectively. Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default significant risk. We have not identified any specific additional risks of 
management override relating to this audit. In line with our methodology, we carried out appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal entries, 
accounting estimates and significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business, or are otherwise unusual. There are no matters arising from this work that  we
need to bring to your attention.

In our External Audit Plan 2015/16 we reported that we would consider two risk areas that are specifically required by professional standards and report our findings to you. The 
table below sets out the outcome of our audit procedures and assessment on these risk areas.

P
age 17



10© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

We always consider the level of prudence within key judgements in your financial statements. We have summarised our view below using the following range of judgement:

Level of prudence

Section three

Judgements



Cautious Balanced Optimistic

Acceptable range

Audit difference Audit difference

£

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Assessment of subjective areas

Asset/liability class View Balance (£m) KPMG comment

Provisions 
(includes Business 
Rate Appeals)

 £1.8 million

(PY: £1.3 million)

The 2015/16 provision includes an amount in respect of an increase in the NNDR provision (£480k) which relates to 
the estimated value of successful appeals that were probable at the Balance Sheet date but where the timing and 
amount were uncertain.

Accruals  £9.4 million

(PY: £9.6 million)

There has been a small change in the number of accruals for 2015/16. We identified an error in the treatment of a 
creditor, where income for a grant was over accrued for. This was in relation to an adjustment made by DCLG. We 
have considered this an isolated error as no further similar errors were identified. The value of this error was £178k.

Deferred income  £2.3 million

(PY: £2.8 million)

We consider the related disclosures to be proportionate, and deferred income has been calculated on a consistent 
basis.

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 
(valuations)

 £43,625 million

(PY: £48,464 million)

The Authority uses an external valuer (Wilks Head & Eve) which reviewed and valued assets using a five year rolling 
approach, ensuring that all assets are revalued every five years. For 2015/16 there has been a decrease in the 
value of Land and Buildings by £4.3 million. Additionally there has been disposals of £350k. The approach is 
consistent with last year.

P
age 18



11© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

We noted an improvement in 
the quality of the draft 
accounts and supporting 
working papers.

Officers dealt efficiently 
with audit queries and the 
audit process could be 
completed within the 
planned timescales.

The Authority has 
implemented the majority of 
the recommendations in our 
ISA 260 Report 2014/15.

Accounts production and audit process

ISA 260 requires us to communicate to you our views about the 
significant qualitative aspects of the Authority’s accounting practices 
and financial reporting. We also assessed the Authority’s process for 
preparing the accounts and its support for an efficient audit.
We considered the following criteria:

Prior year recommendations
As part of our audit we followed up the Authority's progress in addressing 
the recommendations in last years ISA 260 report.

The Authority has implemented the majority of the recommendations 
in our ISA 260 Report 2014/15.

Appendix one provides further details.

Accounts production and audit process
Section three

£

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Element Commentary

Accounting 
practices and 
financial 
reporting

The Authority has strengthened its financial 
reporting process through implementing the 
majority of the recommends raised in the 
previous year and hiring an interim accountant to 
oversea the accounts production process. There 
is scope to improve this further by implementing 
all remaining recommendations and ensuring 
that the step change in processes and 
procedures implemented by the interim 
accountant are maintained.

Completeness 
of draft 
accounts

We received a complete set of draft accounts on 
29 June 2016.

Quality of 
supporting 
working papers

Our Accounts Audit Protocol, which we issued in 
April 2016 and discussed with the interim 
accountant, set out our working paper 
requirements for the audit.
The quality of working papers provided has 
improved compared to last year and in the vast 
majority of the cases met standards specified in 
our Accounts Audit Protocol.

Response to 
audit queries

Officers resolved audit queries in a reasonable 
time.

P
age 19



12© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

We confirm that we have 
complied with requirements 
on objectivity and 
independence in relation to 
this year’s audit of the 
Authority’s financial 
statements.

Before we can issue our 
opinion we require a 
signed management 
representation letter.

Once we have finalised our 
opinions and conclusions we 
will prepare our Annual Audit 
Letter and close our audit.

Declaration of independence and objectivity

As part of the finalisation process we are required to provide you 
with representations concerning our independence.

In relation to the audit of the financial statements of Surrey Heath 
Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2016, we confirm 
that there were no relationships between KPMG LLP and Surrey 
Heath Borough Council, its directors and senior management and 
its affiliates that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on
the objectivity and independence of the audit engagement lead and
audit staff. We also confirm that we have complied with Ethical 
Standards and the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
requirements in relation to independence and objectivity.

We have provided a detailed declaration in Appendix four in 
accordance with ISA 260.

Management representations

You are required to provide us with representations on specific 
matters such as your financial standing and whether the 
transactions in the accounts are legal and unaffected by fraud.  
We provided a template to the Executive Head of Finance for 
presentation to the Audit and Standards Committee. We require a 
signed copy of your management representations before we issue 
our audit opinion.

We have requested a specific representation over the valuation of 
Land and Buildings in the management representation letter.

Other matters

ISA 260 requires us to communicate to you by exception ‘audit 
matters of governance interest that arise from the audit of the 
financial statements’ which include:

— Significant difficulties encountered during the audit;

— Significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed, 
or subject to correspondence with management;

— Other matters, if arising from the audit that, in the auditor's 
professional judgment, are significant to the oversight of the 
financial reporting process; and

— Matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be 
communicated to those charged with governance
(e.g. significant deficiencies in internal control; issues relating 
to fraud, compliance with laws and regulations, subsequent 
events, non disclosure, related party, public interest reporting, 
questions/objections, opening balances etc.).

There are no others matters which we wish to draw to your 
attention in addition to those highlighted in this report.

Completion
Section three

£

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

P
age 20



13© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Our VFM conclusion 
considers whether the 
Authority had proper 
arrangements to ensure it 
took properly informed 
decisions and deployed 
resources to achieve planned 
and sustainable outcomes for 
taxpayers and local people.

We follow a risk based 
approach to target audit effort 
on the areas of greatest audit 
risk.

We concluded that the 
Authority has made proper 
arrangements to ensure it 
took properly informed 
decisions and deployed 
resources to achieve planned 
and sustainable outcomes for 
taxpayers and local people.

Background

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires auditors of 
local government bodies to be satisfied that the authority ‘has 
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources’.

This is supported by the Code of Audit Practice, published by 
the NAO in April 2015, which requires auditors to ‘take into 
account their knowledge of the relevant local sector as a whole, 
and the audited body specifically, to identify any risks that, in the 
auditor’s judgement, have the potential to cause the auditor to 
reach an inappropriate conclusion on the audited body’s 
arrangements.’

The VFM approach is fundamentally unchanged from that 
adopted in 2014/2015 and the process is shown in the diagram 
below. However, the previous two specified reporting criteria 
(financial resilience and economy, efficiency and effectiveness) 
have been replaced with a single criteria supported by three 
sub-criteria.

These sub-criteria provide focus to our VFM work.

VFM Conclusion
Section four

£

Overall criterion
In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to 
ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to 

achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

Informed
decision
making

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Working with
partners and
third parties

V
FM

conclusion

Conclude on 
arrangements to 

secure VFM

Specific local risk based work

Assessment of work 
by other review agencies

No further work required
Identification of 
significant VFM

risks (if any)

VFM audit risk 
assessment

Financial statements 
and other audit work Continually re-assess potential VFM risks

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Conclusion

We have concluded that the Authority has made proper arrangements
to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources
to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people.


Met


Met


Met

P
age 21



14© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

We identified one specific 
VFM risk.

Work completed

In line with the risk-based approach set out on the previous page, 
and in our External Audit Plan we have:

— Assessed the Authority’s key business risks which are 
relevant to our VFM conclusion;

— Identified the residual audit risks for our VFM conclusion, 
taking account of work undertaken in previous years or as part 
of our financial statements audit; and

— Considered the results of relevant work by the Authority, 
inspectorates and review agencies around these risk areas.

Key findings

Below we set out the findings in respect of those areas where we 
have identified a residual audit risk for our VFM conclusion.

We concluded that we did not need to carry out additional work 
for these risks as there was sufficient relevant work completed in 
relation to these risk areas.

Specific VFM Risks
Section four

£

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Specific VFM risk: Assessment

Capacity, capability and structure of the 
finance team

Our work in 2014/15 raised 10 
recommendations, of which 6 were high 
priority. We identified a significant number of 
material errors which raised concern over the 
procedures and processes in place in Finance 
to prepare materially accurate draft financial 
statements and deliver their statutory 
responsibilities.

In 2014/15 we qualified the VFM conclusion in 
light of capacity and capability challenges within
the finance function which were compounded
by pressures in the resource model of the
team. These challenges resulted in late
submission of the draft accounts and the Whole
of Government Accounts pack as well as the
Authority missing the filling deadline for its 
2014/15 annual report and accounts.

As part of our work we held discussions with Management over the implementation of 
our 2014/15 recommendations. 8 out of 10 have been implemented, including all 6 
high priority recommendations.

The Authority appointed an Interim Accountant to manage the draft accounts 
production process in a timely fashion, enhance the preparation of supporting working 
papers, undertake quality assurance reviews and facilitate the accounts and audit 
process as part of a Finance team-wide effort. This individual was temporary and is 
no longer working at the Authority.

The 2015/16 draft accounts and associated working papers were considerably better. 
The draft accounts and Whole of Government return were submitted on time. This 
step change in the control and quality of the accounts process has contributed 
significantly to the unqualified VFM conclusion for 2015/16 compared to the qualified 
2014/15 VFM conclusion.

Per Management a restructuring of the finance function will occur over the summer. 
As part of this exercise we understand that a permeant appointment will be made to 
maintain the step change that benefitted the 2015/16 accounts production. We have 
raised a medium priority recommendation in light of this to ensure the Authority 
consider the impact of the restructure going forward, in particular the need to maintain 
the new processes and procedures implemented for 2015/16.

P
age 22



15© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section four

2015/16 outturn and 2016/17 budget
£

The Authority’s position continues to tighten due to cuts made by Government. The total revenue support grant will fall 68% to £0.4M in 2016/17 before being completely
withdrawn in 2017/18. The Authority plans to offset this through £0.3M savings in the net cost of services. Among other factors, the Authority still needs to find £0.3M of
savings in 2016/17. This requires services to absorb contractual increases or uplift in wages through increases to NI or pension contributions.
The 2016/17 budget requirement (as approved by the Council in February 2016) is £11.5M, an increase of 3.6% on the prior year budget of £11.1M.
Although Government announced that Local Authorities will keep 100% of business rates from 2019/20 there is uncertainty over how this will operate in practice, meaning there 
is still uncertainty over the Authority’s future income streams. The extent of the risks to the Authority’s finances were highlighted by the Section 151 Officer in February 2016, 
where the Council noted comments about the financial forecasts in respect of the budget gap and the potential impact on future sustainability.

In considering the Authority’s arrangements for securing financial resilience, we reviewed the outturn position against original plans, as well as identifying specific one off 
transactions to understand the 2015/16 normalised position. Surrey Heath’s net portfolio expenditure for the year was £11.8M, a £0.6M adverse variance on the budgeted 
position of £11.1M. The Authority made an overall surplus of £2.7M due to a gain on the net defined benefit liability of £9.0M, but a deficit on the provision of services of £3.8M,
£6.5M below the surplus on the provision of services of £2.7M from the prior period.
This is due to a downwards revaluation of £2.5M in investment properties, which is charged straight to he surplus/deficit on provision of services. There have also been 
significant movements in Cultural and Related Services (increase in net expenditure of £2.3M), and Highways and Transport services (increase in net expenditure of £1.6M).
The Authority has taken significant steps to decrease its reliance on government funding due to the planned reductions in this area. It has invested in £17.0M of investment 
property to generate rental income of £1.8M (up 138% on prior year income of £0.8M) and it has diversified its investment portfolio, which means interest income has increased 
100% to £0.5M (PY: £0.2M).
The Authority also made savings through underspends in six of the seven departments. The largest underspend was in Community (£0.6M) due to reduced contract costs in 
Recycling and Waste. Work is ongoing to reduce the overspend within Cultural and related services where the Authority incurred a deficit of £0.8M. 

4

2

0

-2

-4

-6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

2014/15 reported outturn Downwards movement
in investment properties

Cultural and related 
services

Highways and transport Other 2015/16 reported outturn

P
age 23



Appendices

Appendix 1: Key issues and recommendations

Appendix 2: Audit differences

Appendix 3: Materiality and reporting of audit differences

Appendix 4: Declaration of independence and objectivity

P
age 24



17© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

We have given each 
recommendation a risk rating 
and agreed what action 
management will need to 
take.

The Authority should closely 
monitor progress in 
addressing specific risks and 
implementing our 
recommendations.

We will formally follow up this 
recommendations next year.

Key issues and recommendations
Appendix one

Priority rating for recommendations

 Priority one: issues that are 
fundamental and material to your 
system of internal control. We believe 
that these issues might mean that you 
do not meet a system objective or 
reduce (mitigate) a risk.

 Priority two: issues that have an 
important effect on internal controls 
but do not need immediate action. 
You may still meet a system 
objective in full or in part or reduce 
(mitigate) a risk adequately but the 
weakness remains in the system.

 Priority three: issues that would, if 
corrected, improve the internal 
control in general but are not vital to 
the overall system. These are 
generally issues of best practice that 
we feel would benefit you if you 
introduced them.

No. Risk Issue and recommendation Management response / responsible officer / due date

1  Restructuring the finance function
Our work identified that there has been a significant 
amount of work completed to implement enhanced 
processes and procedures compared to last year. This 
included implementing 8 out of 10 recommendations we 
raised in 2014/15 to strengthen financial process. The 
recruitment of an Interim Accountant was key to the 
success of the revised approach for 2015/16. The 
interim is no longer at the Council.
We understand that Management plans to restructure 
the finance function over summer. Hiring a permeant 
Chief accountant to maintain the new systems and 
processes introduced in 2015/16 is recommended.
Management should document the new approach and 
carefully consider how the changes made can be 
preserved as part of the restructuring.

Agreed 
A restructuring programme is currently underway with a 
consultation paper recently submitted to the Corporate 
Management team and staff in August 2016, outlining the 
business case and proposed restructure which includes the 
provision of a Chief Accountant. It is anticipated that this 
will be completed by the end of October 2016.
Due date
31 October 2016

P
age 25



18© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

The Authority implemented 8 
out 10 recommendations 
raised in our ISA 260 Report 
2014/15.

We reiterate the importance 
of the outstanding 
recommendations and 
recommend that these are 
implemented as a matter of 
urgency.

Follow up of prior year recommendations
Appendix one

Number of recommendations raised in 2014/15 that were:

Included in original report 10

Implemented in year or superseded 8

Remain outstanding (reiterated below) 2

# Risk Recommendation Original management 
response and deadline

Status as at 15 August 2016

1  Documenting budget monitoring
The Authority’s budget monitoring process during 
2014/15 involved asking service areas to compare 
actuals vs year end forecast outturn on a quarterly 
basis. However, some budget monitoring 
discussions undertaken between finance staff and 
officers in service areas is not documented. Rather, 
it is done through conversation only. This raises the 
risk that crucial budgeting information or 
explanations are not retained, with no record or 
audit trail to refer back to at a later date.
We recommend that all budget monitoring 
discussions are formally documented. A standard 
template could be developed for this to ensure that 
all pertinent details are always recorded in 
meetings, to ensure that information is retained in a 
complete and consistent manner.

Responsible Officer
Kelvin Menon, Executive 
Head of Finance

Ongoing
Budget discussions, although now 
recorded, are always documented within 
a standard template which captures the 
details discussed during meetings in a 
comprehensive and consistent manner.
Management is currently considering a 
number of different templates, however 
they are working to standardise where 
possible.

Revised due date
30 September 2016

P
age 26



19© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Follow up of prior year recommendations
Appendix one

# Risk Issue and recommendation Original management 
response and deadline

Status as at 15 August 2016

2  Debriefing major projects to identify lessons learnt
The Authority implemented the new Civica ledger system on 1 April 2014. 
Full functionality was not implemented within the original timescales and this 
has resulted in a delay in implementing a ‘business as usual’ state. This 
increased pressure on the finance team’s already challenging resource 
model and impacted on the quality of outputs, as the finance team had to 
concurrently manage both ledger implementation difficulties and day to day 
tasks.
We recommend that Finance undertake a debrief workshop to learn lessons 
from the Civica implementation, to ensure that opportunities to improve 
future project implementations are identified and taken forward 
appropriately. This should be undertaken within an appropriate timeframe, 
with sufficient time to have lapsed between the end of the project and the 
debrief, to allow for staff reflection and consideration before the workshop. 
Such debrief workshops should be held after all significant project 
implementations to ensure that all such opportunities for learning are 
identified to enhance the Authority’s project management and delivery 
arrangements.

Responsible Officer
Kelvin Menon, Executive 
Head of Finance

Overdue
A debrief workshop in relation to the Civica 
implementation project has yet to be conducted. Per 
Management, a formal debrief will be carried out once 
the 2015/16 financial statements have been signed 
off.

Revised due date
31 December 2016

P
age 27



20© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

This appendix sets out 
the significant audit
differences identified during 
the audit for the year ended 
31 March 2016.

We have detailed the 
adjustments which affect the 
bottom line of the core 
financial statements on this 
page, all other misstatements 
to note have been detailed 
overleaf.

There is a net impact on the 
General Fund which equates 
to an increase of £178k.

We are required by ISA 260 to report all uncorrected misstatements, other than those that we believe are clearly trivial, to those charged 
with governance (which in your case is the Audit and Standards Committee). We are also required to report all material misstatements 
that have been corrected but that we believe should be communicated to you to assist you in fulfilling your governance responsibilities.

Uncorrected audit differences

There are no uncorrected audit differences.

Corrected audit differences

Our audit identified one misstatement which affected the Authority’s prime financial statements, which has been detailed below. The 
Authority has confirmed it will amend for this misstatement.

Furthermore, we identified three other material misstatements which affected the financial statements, these are presentational only and 
are detailed below:

Two of the misstatements related to discrepancies between the fixed asset register and Note 11.3 in the financial statements:
— Vehicles, Plant & Equipment: Cost / Valuation At 31 March 2016: To be changed from £8,258k to £4,402k.
— Vehicles, Plant & Equipment: Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment At 31 March 2016: To be changed from (£5,906k) to 

(£2,050k).

Audit differences
Appendix two

Impact

No. Income and
expenditure
statement

Movement in 
reserves 
statement

Assets Liabilities Reserves Basis of audit difference

1 Dr Non 
Domestic Rate 
Income and 
Expenditure
£178k

Cr 
Surplus/Deficit 
Provision 
Services £178k

Cr Central 
Government 
Creditors
£178k

Dr General 
Fund (Useable 
reserves)
£178k

The Authority incorrectly included
£178k of income in their financial 
statements in relation to adjustment 
made by DCLG for the S31 grant.

P
age 28



21© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Audit differences contd.
Appendix two

The financial statements have 
been amended for all of the 
errors identified through the 
audit process.

One material misstatement identified was related to the incorrect inclusion of the borrowings figure in note 34.4.
— Note 34.4: Fair value of assets and liabilities – Borrowings Liabilities for which fair value is not disclosed: The total value in the 

balance sheet is £43,569k. The value in the note should state this value. The variance was £1.76m.
Other errors
We identified non-material presentational errors in the financial statements. These have been discussed with Management and the 
financial statements have been amended.

P
age 29



22© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

For 2015/16 our materiality
is £900k for the Authority’s
accounts.

We have reported all audit 
differences over £540k for the 
Authority’s accounts.

Materiality

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional 
judgment and includes consideration of three aspects: materiality 
by value, nature and context.

— Material errors by value are those which are simply of 
significant numerical size to distort the reader’s perception of 
the financial statements. Our assessment of the threshold for 
this depends upon the size of key figures in the financial 
statements, as well as other factors such as the level of public 
interest in the financial statements.

— Errors which are material by nature may not be large in value, 
but may concern accounting disclosures of key importance 
and sensitivity, for example the salaries of senior staff.

— Errors that are material by context are those that would alter 
key figures in the financial statements from one result to 
another – for example, errors that change successful 
performance against a target to failure.

We used the same planning materiality reported in our External 
Audit Plan 2015/16, presented to management in April 2016.

Materiality for the Authority’s accounts was set at £900k which 
equates to around 75 percent of gross expenditure. We design our 
procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of 
precision.

Reporting to the Audit and Standards Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements 
which are material to our opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit and Standards 
Committee any misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that 
these are identified by our audit work.

Under ISA 260, we are obliged to report omissions or 
misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those 
charged with governance. ISA 260 defines ‘clearly trivial’ as 
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually 
or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or 
qualitative criteria.

ISA 450 requires us to request that uncorrected misstatements are 
corrected.

In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual 
difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is 
less than £45k for the Authority.

Where management have corrected material misstatements 
identified during the course of the audit, we will consider whether 
those corrections should be communicated to the Audit and 
Standards Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance 
responsibilities.

Materiality and reporting of audit differences
Appendix two

P
age 30



23© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Auditors appointed by Public 
Sector Audit Appointments 
Ltd must comply with the 
Code of Audit Practice.

Requirements

Auditors appointed by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
must comply with the Code of Audit Practice (the ‘Code’) which 
states that:

“The auditor should carry out their work with integrity, objectivity and 
independence, and in accordance with the ethical framework 
applicable to auditors, including the ethical standards for auditors set 
by the Financial Reporting Council, and any additional requirements 
set out by the auditor’s recognised supervisory body, or any other 
body charged with oversight of the auditor’s independence. The 
auditor should be, and should be seen to be, impartial and 
independent. Accordingly, the auditor should not carry out any other 
work for an audited body if that work would impair their independence 
in carrying out any of their statutory duties, or might reasonably be 
perceived as doing so.”

In considering issues of independence and objectivity we consider 
relevant professional, regulatory and legal requirements and 
guidance, including the provisions of the Code, the detailed provisions 
of the Statement of Independence included within the Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Ltd Terms of Appointment (‘Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd Guidance’) and the requirements of APB Ethical 
Standard 1 Integrity, Objectivity and Independence
(‘Ethical Standards’).

The Code states that, in carrying out their audit of the financial statements, 
auditors should comply with auditing standards currently in force, and as 
may be amended from time to time. Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
guidance requires appointed auditors to follow the provisions of ISA 
(UK&I) 260 Communication of Audit Matters with Those Charged with 
Governance’ that are applicable to the audit of listed companies. This 
means that the appointed auditor must disclose in writing:

— Details of all relationships between the auditor and the client, its 
directors and senior management and its affiliates, including all 
services provided by the audit firm and its network to the client, its 
directors and senior management and its affiliates, that the 
auditor considers may reasonably be thought to bear on the 
auditor’s objectivity and independence.

— The related safeguards that are in place.

— The total amount of fees that the auditor and the auditor’s network 
firms have charged to the client and its affiliates for the provision 
of services during the reporting period, analysed into appropriate 
categories, for example, statutory audit services, further audit 
services, tax advisory services and other non-audit services. For 
each category, the amounts of any future services which have 
been contracted or where a written proposal has been submitted 
are separately disclosed. We do this in our Annual Audit Letter.

Appointed auditors are also required to confirm in writing that they 
have complied with Ethical Standards and that, in the auditor’s 
professional judgement, the auditor is independent and the auditor’s 
objectivity is not compromised, or otherwise declare that the auditor 
has concerns that the auditor’s objectivity and independence may be 
compromised and explaining the actions which necessarily follow from 
his. These matters should be discussed with the Audit and standards 
Committee.

Ethical Standards require us to communicate to those charged with 
governance in writing at least annually all significant facts and matters, 
including those related to the provision of non-audit services and the 
safeguards put in place that, in our professional judgement, may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and the 
objectivity of the Engagement Lead and the audit team.

Declaration of independence and objectivity
Appendix three

P
age 31



24© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

We confirm that we have 
complied with requirements 
on objectivity and 
independence in relation to 
this year’s audit of the 
Authority’s financial 
statements.

General procedures to safeguard independence and 
objectivity

KPMG's reputation is built, in great part, upon the conduct of our 
professionals and their ability to deliver objective and independent 
advice and opinions. That integrity and objectivity underpins the 
work that KPMG performs and is important to the regulatory 
environments in which we operate. All partners and staff have an 
obligation to maintain the relevant level of required independence 
and to identify and evaluate circumstances and relationships that 
may impair that independence.

Acting as an auditor places specific obligations on the firm, 
partners and staff in order to demonstrate the firm's required 
independence. KPMG's policies and procedures regarding 
independence matters are detailed in the Ethics and 
Independence Manual (‘the Manual’). The Manual sets out the 
overriding principles and summarises the policies and regulations 
which all partners and staff must adhere to in the area of 
professional conduct and in dealings with clients and others.

KPMG is committed to ensuring that all partners and staff are 
aware of these principles. To facilitate this, a hard copy of the 
Manual is provided to everyone annually. The Manual is divided 
into two parts. Part 1 sets out KPMG's ethics and independence 
policies which partners and staff must observe both in relation to 
their personal dealings and in relation to the professional services 
they provide. Part 2 of the Manual summarises the key risk 
management policies which partners and staff are required to 
follow when providing such services.

All partners and staff must understand the personal responsibilities 
they have towards complying with the policies outlined in the 
Manual and follow them at all times.

To acknowledge understanding of and adherence to the policies 
set out in the Manual, all partners and staff are required to submit 
an annual ethics and independence confirmation. Failure to follow 
these policies can result in disciplinary action.

Auditor declaration

In relation to the audit of the financial statements of Surrey Heath 
Borough Council for the financial year ending 31 March 2016, we 
confirm that there were no relationships between KPMG LLP and 
Surrey Heath Borough Council, its directors and senior 
management and its affiliates that we consider may reasonably be 
thought to bear on the objectivity and independence of the audit 
engagement lead and audit staff. We also confirm that we have 
complied with Ethical Standards and the Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd requirements in relation to independence and 
objectivity.

Declaration of independence and objectivity contd.
Appendix three

P
age 32



25© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Audit fees

Our scale fee for the audit was £41,900 exc. VAT in 2015/16. This fee was in line with that highlighted within our audit plan and was agreed by management in April 2016. Our 
scale fee for certification for the HBCOUNT was £8,430 exc. VAT (£8,430 in 2015/16).

We are currently waiting on confirmation from the PSAA in relation to the 2014/15 fee variation request.

Non-audit services

We have not provided any non-audit services to the Authority in relation to 2015/16.

Appendix four

Audit Independence

P
age 33



The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any particular individual or entity. 
Although we endeavour to provide accurate and timely information, there can be no guarantee that such information is accurate as of the date it is 
received or that it will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should act on such information without appropriate professional advice after a 
thorough examination of the particular situation.

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

KPMG LLP is multi-disciplinary practice authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority. For full details of our professional 
regulation please refer to ‘Regulatory Information’ at www.kpmg.com/uk

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. | Create KGS: CRT064379A

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

kpmg.com/uk

P
age 34

http://www.kpmg.com/uk


Contents 

1 
 

 
Page 35

Agenda Item 4b 



Contents 

2 
 

Contents 
Narrative Statement ................................................................................................................... 4 

Message from the Executive Head of Finance – Kelvin Menon .............................................. 4 

Statement of Responsibilities ................................................................................................. 15 

Movement in Reserves Statement .......................................................................................... 16 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ............................................................ 17 

Balance Sheet .......................................................................................................................... 18 

Cash Flow Statement............................................................................................................... 19 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements................................................................................. 20 

1. Basis of Preparation ......................................................................................................... 20 

2. Accounting Policies ......................................................................................................... 20 

3. Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted ............ 20 

4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies ..................................................... 20 

5. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty ............................................................................................................................... 21 

6. Events after the Balance Sheet Date ............................................................................... 22 

7. Members’ Allowances ...................................................................................................... 22 

8. Officers’ Remuneration .................................................................................................... 23 

9. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations ........... 25 

10. Grant Income ................................................................................................................. 28 

11. Property, Plant and Equipment .................................................................................... 28 

12. Heritage Assets ............................................................................................................. 30 

13. Intangible Assets .......................................................................................................... 31 

14. Investment Properties .................................................................................................. 31 

15. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing ................................................................. 32 

16. Transfers (to) / from Earmarked Reserves .................................................................. 33 

17. Unusable Reserves ....................................................................................................... 34 

18. Leases............................................................................................................................ 37 

19. Long Term Debtors ....................................................................................................... 39 

20. Short Term Debtors ...................................................................................................... 39 

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents ......................................................................................... 39 

22. Short Term Creditors & Provisions ............................................................................. 39 

23. Cash Flow statement – investing activities ................................................................. 40 

24. Cash Flow statement – financing activities ................................................................. 40 

25. Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions ................................................. 41 

26. Trading Operations ....................................................................................................... 44 

27. Agency Services ........................................................................................................... 45 

28. External Audit costs ..................................................................................................... 45 

29. Related Parties .............................................................................................................. 46 

30. Prior Period Adjustments ............................................................................................. 46 

31. Defined Benefit Pension schemes ............................................................................... 47 

Page 36



Contents 

3 
 

32. Contingent Liabilities .................................................................................................... 52 

33. Contingent Assets ........................................................................................................ 53 

34. Financial Instruments ................................................................................................... 53 

35. Nature and extent of risks of Financial Instruments .................................................. 56 

Collection Fund........................................................................................................................ 61 

Accounting Policies – (Note 2 continued..) ............................................................................ 63 

General Glossary ..................................................................................................................... 77 

Pension Glossary .................................................................................................................... 82 

Annual Governance Statement ............................................................................................... 84 

Independent Auditor’s report to the Members of Surrey Heath Borough Council .............. 95 

 

Page 37



Narrative Statement  

Message from the Executive Head of Finance – Kelvin Menon 

 
The financial year 2015/16 has been another time of change for the Surrey Heath Finance 
Service. Due to problems encountered last year in respect of the financial accounting system 
and accounts production the audit and accounts for 2014/15 were not formally closed until the 7th 
April 2016. Despite this the finance team have made a fantastic effort to ensure that all of the 
issues that arose last year were addressed and hence we are able to complete the financial 
statements on time. The external audit was completed in July and August and we anticipate 
being issued an unqualified audit opinion following approval of the Statement of Accounts on 19 
September 2016. 
 
However, as a result of the change in legislation applicable for 2015/16 (the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015), the overall reporting timeline for the accounts will change from the 2017/18 
financial year meaning that unaudited accounts will have to be published by the 31st May and 
audited and approved by the 31st July. This will mean the way the accounts are prepared will 
need to change in order to take account of the shorter timetable.  
 
The financial statements demonstrate that the financial standing of the Council continues to be 
good. This was confirmed in a LGA Peer Review conducted last year. The Civica financial 
system is being used by services to monitor expenditure and a project for 2016/17 will be to 
integrate the payroll and financial systems. Once implemented, this will enable services to 
access real time information on their areas of expenditure.  
 
The Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). It therefore aims to provide 
information so that members of the public, including electors and residents of Surrey Heath, 
Council Members, partners, stakeholders and other interested parties can: 

• Understand the overarching financial position of the Council and the outturn for 2015/16; 

• Have confidence that the public money with which the Council has been entrusted has been 
used and accounted for in an appropriate manner; and 

• Be assured that the financial position of the Council is sound and secure. 
 
The style and format of the accounts, complies with CIPFA standards and is similar to that of 
previous years. We have made efforts to de-clutter the accounts whilst continuing to meet 
statutory requirements.  
 
This Narrative Report (a change in requirements for 2015/16 replacing the Explanatory 
Foreword) provides information about Surrey Heath, including the key issues affecting the 
Council and its accounts, and is set out in accordance with the Guidance.  In addition further 
contextual information is included for information.  After the Narrative report there is a separate 
section giving an explanation of the Financial Statements. 
 
An Introduction to Surrey Heath 
 
Surrey Heath Borough Council is one of the eleven Local Authorities in the county of Surrey. It 
lies at the western edge of Surrey and in fact borders Hampshire to the west and Berkshire to the 
north. The Borough covers 36.5 square miles in North West Surrey and is a mix of urban and 
rural environments.  It combines a vibrant economy with an attractive environment and, 
statistically, is the second safest district in one of the safest counties in England and Wales.   
 
The urban part of the Borough comprises Camberley and Frimley, extending to Deepcut, 
Mytchett and Frimley Green with other centres of population in Windlesham, Bagshot, Chobham, 
Bisley, West End and Lightwater.  
 
Much of the rural area is within the Green Belt and includes extensive areas of heath and 
woodland.  There are five sites of Special Scientific Interest in the Borough, four of which are part 

Page 38



Narrative Statement 

5 
 

of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area of European importance, as a habitat for 
certain endangered bird species.  This issue significantly impacts upon development potential in 
the borough. 
 
Economic growth, both in terms of employment opportunities and physical redevelopment, is 
recognised as being very important to the future prosperity of the borough and is a key priority of 
the Council.  The Council has to provide services such that it meets the needs of its citizens, 
serving both an urban and rural environment and this is influenced by the makeup of the 
population, education, the economy, health and housing issues. 
 
 
Key Facts about Surrey Heath 
 
The total population of Surrey Heath according to 2011 census is 86,144, which is a 7.3% 
increase since the last Census in 2001. There are 33,546 households representing an increase 
of 5.7% since 2001. The average household size is 2.52 people (the largest in Surrey) and this 
produces a population density of 9.1 people per hectare.   
 
Our population continues to age with 16.72% of residents being over 65 years of age, an 
increase of 31.8% since the last Census. Our over 85 year olds have also increased significantly 
by 38.5% to 1,800 residents. This is going to be an increasingly important factor in the delivery of 
services.  
 
Surrey Heath is predominantly "White British" with sizeable minorities of people from Asia. The 
Borough has one of the lowest unemployment rates in the country and a well-educated 
workforce. That said there are pockets of deprivation with youth unemployment being a particular 
problem. House prices are amongst the highest in Surrey making it difficult for younger residents 
to get on the housing ladder.  
 
With London and its international airports, Heathrow and Gatwick, only an hour away by car or 
train, and major towns and cities in the south within easy reach, Surrey Heath is an ideal location 
for worldwide commerce. Not surprisingly, Surrey Heath is continually sought after for residential 
and commercial development.  Commercial and housing development has brought radical 
changes to the Borough in recent years. These pressures, together with the fact that Surrey 
Heath is rated as one of the most prosperous areas in the country, provide a Borough where the 
needs of people, the environment and commerce must be skillfully blended.  Leisure time is also 
well catered for, not only in Surrey Heath itself, with facilities for arts, sports and other family 
interests and pastimes, but in neighboring areas as well.  
 
Economy 
 
Economic data tells us: 

• Average income per person is £24,180 which is above the national average; 

• The unemployment rate in Surrey Heath is around 1.4% although there are local pockets of 
higher unemployment.  

• The index of deprivation is 7.73 making it the 3rd least deprived district in Surrey 

• 8% of children were deemed to be living in poverty which is well below the England average 
of 18%.  

 
That said, a number of the Council’s wards such as Old Dean, Watchetts and St Pauls are 
amongst the most deprived in the County.  
 
Key Information about Surrey Heath Council 
 
Surrey Heath Borough Council is a multifunctional and complex organisation. Its policies are 
directed by the Political Leadership and implemented by the Corporate Management Team and 

Page 39



Narrative Statement 

6 
 

Officers of the Council.  The following section describes the political and management structures 
of the Council, the political ethos driving the policy agenda and the means by which these are 
implemented and managed. 
 
Political Structure in the 2015/16 Municipal Year 
 
Surrey Heath has 16 wards represented by 40 Councillors. The Council held all out elections on 
the 7th May 2015 and as a result the political make-up of the council became: 
 

Conservative Party    36 
Labour Party       1 
Liberal Democrat Party    1  
Independent      2  

 
The Council has adopted the Leader and Executive model as its political management structure 
arising from the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. The Leader of the 
Council has responsibility for the appointment of Members of the Executive, the allocation of 
Portfolios and the delegation of Executive Functions. Executive Members are held to account by 
a system of scrutiny which is also set out in the Constitution. Scrutiny of Executive decisions for 
2015/16 has been undertaken by either the: 

• Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee; or the 

• Audit and Standards Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The current Leader, Cllr Moira Gibson, has been leader for a number of years and the deputy 
Leader, Cllr Richard Brooks, is also the portfolio holder for finance.  
 
Management Structure 
 
Supporting the work of councillors is the organisational structure of the Council headed by the 
Corporate Management Team, led by the Chief Executive Mrs Karen Whelan. 
 
The Corporate Management team consists of: 

• Executive Head of Business 

• Executive Head of Corporate 

• Executive Head of Community 

• Executive Head of Regulatory 

• Executive Head of Transformation 

• Executive Head of Finance (Sec 151 Officer) 

• Head of Legal (Monitoring Officer) 
 
The Executive Head of Finance attends all Corporate Management Team meetings in his role as 
the Council’s Chief Finance Officer (the officer responsible under statute for the administration of 
the Council’s financial affairs) together with the Head of Legal as the Monitoring Officer. This 
ensures that the key statutory officers are represented at the most senior level of the Council. 
 
The Corporate Management Team is responsible for the delivery of Council services, directing 
improvements and future plans for Surrey Heath. It provides managerial leadership and supports 
Councillors in: 

• developing strategies; 

• identifying and planning resources; 

• delivering plans; and 

• reviewing the Authority’s effectiveness with the overall objective of providing excellent 
services to the public. 

 
 

Page 40



Narrative Statement 

7 
 

 
The Council undertook an LGA Peer Review during the year which stated that current 
management structure was working well.  
 
Council Employees 
 
At the end of March 2016 the Council employed 218 FTEs a reduction of 5 compared with the 
previous year. This was also a reduction of over 50 compared with 10 years ago. The Council 
recognises the value and importance of Council staff in every aspect of the Council’s work and 
was awarded the Gold Investors in People Award in this financial year.  
 
The Council’s Corporate Plan 
 
The Council has faced significant cuts in its funding over the past few years resulting in revenue 
budget reductions of almost 50% in the period from 2009/10 to 2015/16 with a further reduction 
of £600k in 2016/17.  These reductions represent a significant proportion of the Council’s overall 
budget.  
 
In spite of these financial challenges, Surrey Heath is an ambitious Council that wants to deliver 
for its residents.  
 
The Council has 4 key priorities as follows: 

• To deliver an improved Camberley Town Centre for the benefit of the Borough 

• To assist with the improvement of economic growth for Surrey Heath 

• Securing the future of local public services in Surrey Heath through a variety of strategies 

• Working with partners and the community to keep Surrey Heath a clean, green and safe place 
for the continued wellbeing of our Borough: 

 
The Council publishes an annual plan as to how these priorities are to be advanced and reports 
on progress twice a year to members.  
 
To deliver an improved Camberley Town Centre for the benefit of the Borough: 
 

• Delivering a viable and sustainable redevelopment of the A30 frontage 

• Improve accessibility to the Town Centre 

• Delivering the overall Town Centre vision including land east of Knoll Road, station and 
leisure opportunities 

 
To assist with the improvement of economic growth for Surrey Heath: 
 

• Use prudential borrowing opportunities to improve sustainability and growth in Surrey Heath 

• Maximising income returns from our reserves, through effective investment strategies 

• Maximising the potential for appropriate construction led growth in the Borough 

• Deliver the Economic Development Strategy Action Plans to advance economic prosperity in 
Surrey Heath 

 
Securing the future of local public services in Surrey Heath through a variety of 
strategies: 
 

• Internal service transformation; 

• Maximising use and occupation of publicly owned assets; 

• Developing a longer term vision for sustainable collaborative working 
  
Working with partners and the community to keep Surrey Heath a clean, green and safe 
place for the continued wellbeing of our Borough: 

Page 41



Narrative Statement 

8 
 

 

• To deliver with partners the Sustainable Community Strategic Partnership Action Plan 

• To deliver with the SHCCG and SCC the Surrey Heath Health and Wellbeing Action Plan 

• To ensure that the borough’s open spaces are well maintained and sustainably managed for 
th future 

• To work with partners to procure and deliver a high quality and cost effective waste collection 
and street cleansing service.  

 
Our Core Values are: Customer Focus, One team, Respect for All and Excellence. 
 
Testing of the understanding and application of these Core Values has been introduced as part 
of the appraisal process for 2016/17 for senior management.  
 
Devolution and Partnership Working 
 
The Council understands that in the current financial climate it is essential that councils work 
together to achieve efficiencies and hence protect front line services. Surrey Heath has worked 
hard at creating a number of successful partnerships with other authorities for a wide range of 
services and work is ongoing to extend this further. The largest of these relates to the Joint 
Waste Collection contract covering Surrey Heath, Woking, Mole Valley and Elmbridge.  Surrey 
Heath staff have been key to the development of this contract and early indications are that 
substantial savings will be made not only on contractor costs but also internally from a reduction 
in contract management teams. This provides a blue print which could be used for other 
services. 
 
Surrey Heath is a member of the 3SC devolution bid which covers Surrey, East and West 
Sussex and Brighton. The objective of the bid is to ensure that the economic advantage enjoyed 
by the 3SC area is not lost due to lack of investment in infrastructure. Surrey Heath is supportive 
of greater investment in the region and is working with partners to make this a reality. 
 
The Council is a member of the Enterprise M3 Local Enterprise Partnership that covers parts of 
Surrey and Hampshire. Surrey Heath has been successful in obtaining grants to fund schemes 
for roads and regeneration to boost economic growth in the borough. The Council also works 
closely with its neighbouring Blackwater Valley authorities on areas of common concern such as 
congestion and housing.  
 

Expenditure 
compared in 
overall terms to 
the budgetThe 
table below shows 
the service 
expenditure and 
funding compared 
to budget. Budget Actual Variance 

£ £ £ 

Service Expenditure  11,572,953 11,901,657 -328,704 

Financed by:     

Council Tax Payers -7,874,193  -7,874,193  0  

Revenue support Grant -1,094,873  -1,094,873  0  

New Burdens Grants -99,055  99,055  

Business Rates -1,423,497  -2,101,692  678,195  

Collection fund Surplus -120,000  -120,000  0  

Investment income -300,000  -589,872  289,872  

Page 42



Narrative Statement 

9 
 

New Homes bonus -1,271,000  -1,275,436  4,436  

Reserves funding -22,850  897,737  -920,587  

Total funding -12,106,413  -12,257,384  150,971  

 
 
Material assets acquired or liabilities incurred 
 
In order to further the Council’s key priorities of the regeneration of Camberley Town Centre and delivering economic 
growth the Council invested £17m in property during the year. £7.1m was spent to acquire Ashwood House, an office 
block in Camberley, to kick start regeneration by delivering more housing and bringing an empty building back to use. 
A further £0.4m was used to acquire properties along the London Road frontage. £8.4m was used to purchase St 
George’s Industrial Estate during the year to safeguard an important employment location and generate an income. 
Finally the council also invested £1m to purchase land to be used as SANGS in order to enable housing development 
to be delivered.  
 
These acquisitions were financed by borrowing of £16.4m from the Public Works Loans Board and £1m from the 
Enterprise M3 LEP.  These loans represent new liabilities for the Council.  
 
Pensions Liabilities 
 
The Pension’s liability has fallen £7.8m due to a change in the discount rate applied by the actuaries. This gives a net 
liability of £30.5m at the 31

st
 March 2016.  Full details are given in the accounts. The pension scheme is currently 

undergoing its triennial review and the result of this will be reflected in the contributions payable from the 1
st
 April 

2017. 
 
Changes to Accounting Policies 
 
There were no significant changes to accounting policies over the year. 
 
Major changes to Statutory Functions 
 
There were no major changes to statutory functions over the year. The council is currently working with 3 other 
authorities on the procurement of a joint waste collection contract. This will not be implemented in Surrey Heath until 
2018 and should realise significant savings. The Council is continuing with its policy of maintaining services despite 
reducing funding by generating income.    
 
Current Borrowing Facilities and Capital Borrowing 
 
During the year the Council entered into £17.4m of external borrowing to finance asset purchases. This was the first 
time that borrowing had been undertaken by the Council. This resulted in a financing charge of £491k being charged in 
the accounts all of which was covered by additional income generated from the assets acquired. The treasury strategy 
allows an upper limit of £26m for borrowing. 
 
Internal and External sources of funds available for the capital program 
 
The Council is in a fortunate position of holding £20m in reserves of which approximately half could be used to support 
the capital program. In addition the Council is prepared to borrow money to finance capital acquisitions provided that 
this is prudent.  
 
Significant Provisions and contingencies 
 
Details of these are given in the financial statements. The most significant provision continues to be that relating to 
appeals in respect of business rates.  This has increased by £500k to £1.76m this year and reflects the high level of 
appeals the Council has received over the year. 
 

 
 
Details of material events since the Balance Sheet date 
 
At the time of writing there are no events which would impact upon these financial statements 
 
Impact of the current economic climate on the Authority 
 
The financial forecast prepared for the period from 2015/16 to 2019/20 indicated that savings of 
just under £1m would be required by the end of the forecast period.  In order to achieve this, the 

Page 43



Narrative Statement 

10 
 

Council would have to continue to significantly reconfigure its future business and organisational 
arrangements in order to continue to provide value for money public services. This would involve 
far closer partnership working with other authorities – the joint waste collection contract is an 
example of this. However it was recognised that this saving alone would not be sufficient to 
address this gap and that the Council would need to generate its own income.  
 
Under Council Priority 2 the Council commits itself to borrow to deliver regeneration and income. 
During the year the Council for the first time borrowed £16m to firstly acquire an office block to 
kick start regeneration and deliver housing and secondly an industrial estate to safeguard jobs 
and generate an income.  
 
The latest MTFS, which is currently in draft form, and reflects the January 2016 settlement, 
indicates that more of this property investment will need to be undertaken if the Council is intent 
on preserving services.   
 
The Local Government Financial Settlement of 8 February 2016 giving settlement figures up to 
2019/20 has enabled a more accurate assessment of the Council’s future financial position. This 
had the effect of increasing the Council’s budget gap by £100k to £1.1m. It is likely that the policy 
of income generation coupled with greater efficiencies will continue to be followed.  
 
The Council continues to make significant payments to fund a pension deficit.  Although the fund 
has improved over the year the requirement to take ever increasing contributions is a real burden 
on the authority. The results of the 2016 actuarial review are eagerly awaited.  
 
The major influences on the budget going forward into 2017/18 and beyond are the continued 
anticipated reductions in central Government support, including the implementation of 100% 
business rates retention, and expenditure pressures relating to: pay awards, inflationary 
pressures, capital financing in relation to the Council’s capital programme, impact of the National 
Living Wage on contract costs and increasing demand for services from an ageing population.  
 
Non-Financial Performance of the Council 2015/16 
 
Achievements 
Although times are challenging for Surrey Heath Borough Council and the Local Government 
sector as a whole it is important to consider significant positive outcomes in the Borough and the 
Council’s key achievements over the past twelve months. These include: 
  

• Invested in commercial property funded by borrowing 

• Purchased  land to act as SANGS to deliver housing development 

• Invested in the town centre car parks to improve customer experience resulting in increased 
revenue 

• Installed a new 3g pitch in Frimley Lodge Park 

• Delivered a dementia befriending pilot in Heatherside working with the SHCCG 

• Successfully completed the first tender stage for a new joint waste collection contract and be 
on track for a final tender 

• Delivered “commitment” level in the Health and Wellbeing Charter 

• Increased the number of users of community services 

• Maintained the borough’s recycling rate at one of the highest in the country 

• Implemented a new website including tablet and smartphone connectivity 

• Introduced a new call handling system to get better outcomes for callers 

• Completed successful elections in May and November 2015 

• Increased returns on treasury Investments 

• Implemented ebilling for Council Tax and a second Direct debit payment date 

• Increased the percentage of Council Tax and Business Rates collected to amongst the 
highest in the country 

Page 44



Narrative Statement 

11 
 

•  Implement a Corporate Enforcement team targeting fly tipping etc. 

• Achieved Gold Investors in People 

• Achieved a successful LGA Peer review 

• Introduced a Competency based framework for staff appraisals 

•  page 24 Oldham Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
At the time of preparing the Statement of Accounts, the draft Performance report for the year 
showed that out of 14 targets in the key priorities, 100% were achieved or on track and out of the 
70 service milestones, 87% were completed or on track.  
 
A detailed performance report is due to go to the Council’s Executive in the summer. 
Old Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 page 25 
Corporate Risks 
The Council has a Corporate Risk Group which assesses corporate risks to the Council services 
and the achievement of its objectives. The Corporate Risk Register outlines these risks and is 
presented to Members on an annual basis.  
 
Key corporate risks are considered in the Annual Governance Statement. They include: 
- Implementation of new adult social care financial systems; 
- Information security and compliance with data protection legislation; 
- Reductions in Government Funding; 
- Business Continuity Systems and processes; 
- Capacity and Resilience; 
- Failure of a major contractor; 
- Impact of Legislation; 
- Inability to deliver town centre regeneration; 
- Treasury investment strategy, and 
- Property Investment risk. 

 
Summary Position 
It is clear that the Council’s financial and non-financial performance in 2015/16 continues to be 
good. The Council has invested in property during the year to deliver regeneration and income in 
order to protect services and more of this will be required in the future. In addition, work is on- 
going in working more closely with other councils to deliver savings and greater resilience. The 
Council is also in the fortunate position of having a high level of reserves which enables it to 
invest in the future and provide some assistance with the challenges it faces. 
 
There is still a lot of work to do but the Council is in a good position as it moves into 2016/17 and 
beyond. 
 
Receipt of Further Information 
If you would like to receive further information about these Accounts, please do not hesitate to 
contact me at the Finance Department, Surrey Heath Borough Council, Knoll Road, Camberley, 
Surrey GU15 3HD. 
 
Acknowledgements 
The production of the Statement of Accounts would not have been possible without the 
exceptionally hard work and dedication of staff across the Council. I would like to express my 
gratitude to all colleagues, particularly from the Finance team, who have assisted in the 
preparation of this document. I would also like to thank them for all their support during what has 
been a very challenging financial year. 
 
 
 
 
 
K S Menon 

Page 45



Narrative Statement 

12 
 

Executive Head of Finance BSc(Hons) ACA, CIPFA 
  

Page 46



Narrative Statement 

13 
 

Explanation of the Financial Statements 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to produce a Statement of 
Accounts for each financial year. These statements contain a number of different elements which 
are explained below: 
 
Statements to the Accounts 
 
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts sets out the respective 
responsibilities of the Authority and the Chief Finance Officer (Executive Head of Finance). 
 
Auditor’s Report gives the auditor’s opinion of the financial statements and of the authority’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. 
 
Core Financial Statements 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves 
held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. This includes Capital Grants Unapplied 
Account which are grants received but not yet utilised and Capital Receipts Reserve which holds 
the balance of receipts from disposals of assets. The ‘Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of 
services’ line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s services, which is shown in 
more detail in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from 
the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council Tax 
setting purposes. The ‘Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves’ line 
shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from 
earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the cost of providing services in 
the year in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, rather than the amount 
funded from Council Tax, and other Government grants. The amount funded from Council Tax 
and Government grants differ from this by a series of adjustments made in accordance with 
regulations. These adjustments are made in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Balance Sheet shows the value of the Council’s assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. 
These are matched by reserves which are split into two categories, Usable and Unusable 
reserves. Unusable reserves are not available to support services and are in the main used to 
hold unrealised gains and losses, where the actual gain or loss will only become available once 
another event has occurred. For example, the Revaluation Reserve for Non-Current Assets will 
only become available if the asset is sold and the full value of the asset realised. 
 
Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in the Council’s cash and cash equivalents during the 
reporting period. The Statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash 
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount 
of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the 
operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income, or by the recipients of 
services provided. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been 
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. 
Cashflows arising from financing activities are useful when predicting claims on future cashflows 
to the Council by providers of capital, ie .borrowing. 

 
Supplementary Statements 
 
Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation of billing authorities 
to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing 
authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 

Page 47



Narrative Statement 

14 
 

(NDR) and its distribution to precepting bodies. For Surrey Heath, the Council Tax precepting 
bodies are the Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey, Surrey County Council and the 
Parishes of Bisley, Chobham, West End and Windelsham. 
 
Main Changes to the Core Statements and Significant Transactions in 2015/16 

The actuarial valuation of the Council’s pension scheme liabilities and pension reserve, included 
in Unusable Reserves on the Balance Sheet, have reduced by £7.780m in the year, mainly as a 
result of changes to the financial assumptions used by the pension fund Actuary (Hymans-
Robertson). The main change relates to the increase in the discount rate used by the Actuary to 
discount the future cash flows of the fund. These assumptions are determined by the Actuary 
and represent the market conditions at the reporting date. The Council relies and places 
assurance on the professional judgement of the Actuary and the assumptions used to calculate 
this actuarial valuation. Further details are given in the notes to the accounts. 

Annual Governance Statement 

The Council is also required by statute to publish an Annual Governance Statement.  This is a 
formal statement that covers all significant corporate systems, processing and controls, spanning 
the whole range of its activities.  It is approved by the Audit and Standards Committee and 
signed by the Council’s Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council.  It is not part of the 
Statement of Accounts, but is required to be included alongside it in the same publication, and as 
such is not covered by the Chief Finance Officer’s certification.  
 
 
 

Page 48



Statement of Responsibilities 

15 
 

Statement of Responsibilities 

The Council’s responsibilities 

The Council is required to: 
 

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one 
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of these affairs.  In this Council, that 
officer is the Executive Head of Finance; 

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard 
its assets, and 

• approve the Statement of Accounts. 

The Executive Head of Finance’s responsibilities 

The Executive Head of Finance is legally and professionally responsible for the preparation of 
the Council’s Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the 
Code). 
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, I have: 
 

• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 

• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent, and  

• complied with the Local Authority Code. 
 
The Executive Head of Finance has also: 
 

• kept proper accounting records which are up to date; 

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Council at the reporting date and of its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 
2016. 
 
 
 
 
Kelvin Menon BSc ACA 
Executive Head of Finance 
      September 2016 
 
In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  I certify that the Statement of 
Accounts was approved by the Committee on 19 September 2016. 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Valerie White 
Chairman of Audit and Standards Committee 
 19 September 2016 
 

 

Page 49



Core Financial Statements 

16 
 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, 
analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local 
taxation) and other reserves. The '(surplus) or deficit on the provision of services' line shows the 
increase or decrease in the net worth of the Council as a result of incurring expenses and 
generating income, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to 
the General Fund balance for council tax setting purposes. The 'net (increase) /decrease before 
transfers to earmarked reserves' line shows the statutory General Fund balance before any 
discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 

Movement in Reserves during 2015/16 

 
 

General 
Fund 

Balance 

Earmarked 
General 

Fund 
Reserves 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Total 
Usable 

Reserves 

Unusable 
Reserves 

Total 
Council 

Reserves 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Balance at 31 March 2015 b f/wd (2,703) (16,622) (809) (14) (20,148) (24,844) (44,992) 

 

(Surplus) or deficit on the Provision  
of Services 

3,970 - - - 3,970 - 3,970 

Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

- - - - - (6,457) (6,457) 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

3,970 0 0 0 3,970 (6,457) (2,487) 

Adjustments between accounting 
basis & funding basis under 
regulations (Note 9) 

(4,460) - 326 - (4,134) 4,134 0 

Net (increase)/decrease before 
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 

(490) 0 326 0 (164) (2,323) (2,487) 

Transfers (to)/from Earmarked 
Reserves (Note 16) 

973 (887) - - 86 (86) 0 

(Increase)/decrease in year 483 (887) 326 0 (78) (2,409) (2,487) 

Balance at 31 March 2016 c/fwd (2,220) (17,509) (483) (14) (20,226) (27,253) (47,479) 

 

Movement in Reserves during 2014/15 

 
 

General 
Fund 

Balance 

Earmarked 
General 

Fund 
Reserves 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Total 
Usable 

Reserves 

Unusable 
Reserves 

Total 
Council 

Reserves 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Balance at 31 March 2014 b f/wd (2,416) (16,522) (2,063) (14) (21,015) (17,740) (38,755) 

(Surplus) or deficit on the Provision  
of Services 

(2,717) - - - (2,717) - (2,717) 

Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

- - - - - (3,696) (3,696) 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

(2,717) 0 0 0 (2,717) (3,696) (6,413) 

Adjustments between accounting 
basis & funding basis under 
regulations (Note 9) 

2,154 - 1,254 - 3,408 (3,408) 0 

Net (increase)/decrease before 
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 

(563) 0 1,254 0 691 
 

      (7,104)  
 

(6,413) 

Transfers (to)/from Earmarked 
Reserves (Note 16) 

100 (100) - - 0 - 0 

(Increase)/decrease in year (463) (100) 1,254 0 691 (7,104) (6,413) 

Other CIES 176 - - - 176 - 176 

Balance at 31 March 2015 c/fwd (2,703) (16,622) (809) (14) (20,148) (24,844) (44,992) 

 

Page 50



Core Financial Statements 

17 
 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils 
raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
 2015/16 2014/15 
 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

In
c

o
m

e
 

N
e

t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

In
c

o
m

e
 

N
e

t 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Central services to the public 2,128 (523) 1,605 1,936 (868) 1,068 

Cultural and related services 3,626 (1,410) 2,216 2,708 (2,800) (92) 

Environmental and Regulatory 
services 

5,764 (1,454) 4,310 5,024 (1,005) 4,019 

Planning services 2,581 (1,417) 1,164 2,090 (1,355) 735 

Highways, & transport services 2,529 (2,054) 475 1,480 (2,569) (1,089) 

Housing services 18,305 (17,555) 750 19,596 (17,244) 2,352 

Adult social care  1,901 (1,076) 825 2,315 (1,613) 702 

Corporate & democratic core 2,494 (189) 2,305 2,429 (42) 2,387 

Non-distributed costs 324 0 324 0 0 0 

Cost of Services 39,652 (25,678) 13,974 37,578 (27,496) 10,082 

Other Operating Expenditure      
Parish council precepts   525   509 

     

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure     

Interest payable and similar charges 472   0 

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 1,226   1,348 

Interest receivable and similar income (608)   (241) 

Income and expenditure in relation to investment 
properties and changes in their fair value (Note 14) 

1,286   
 

(2,633) 

Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income & Expenditure   

Council Tax income   (8,019)   (7,756) 

Non-Domestic rates income and expenditure  (2,101)   (1,152) 

Non-ringfenced Government grants (Note 10) (2,469)   (2,591) 

Capital grants and contributions (Note 10)  (316)   (283) 

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services 3,970   (2,717) 

Items that will not be reclassified to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services  
(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

2,392   (9,251) 

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) (9,010)   5,699 

Items that may be reclassified to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services  
(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of available for sale 
financial assets 

161   (144) 

Other Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure (6,457)   (3,696) 

Total Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure (2,487)   (6,413) 

 

Page 51



Core Financial Statements 

18 
 

Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the asset and liabilities 
recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council are matched by the reserves held by 
the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable 
reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to 
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the 
Capital Receipts Reserve which can only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The 
second category of reserves is those that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This 
category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the 
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the 
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line “Adjustments between the accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”       
 

 
 31 March 2016  31 March 2015 

 
Note £’000  £’000 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
 

   

Other Land and Buildings 11 43,625  48,464 

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 11 2,352  2,460 

Infrastructure Assets 11 53  63 

Community Assets 11 1,802  609 

Surplus Assets not held for sale 11 969  237 

Assets under Construction 11 40  963 

Total Property, Plant & Equipment  48,841  52,796 

Heritage Assets 12 334  334 

Investment Property 14 26,825  12,534 

Long-term Investments 34 9,962  11,623 

Long-term Debtors 19 168  320 

Long-term Assets  86,130  77,607 

Short-term Investments  10,350  2,676 

Inventories  51  34 

Short-term Debtors 20 4,699  6,513 

Cash and cash equivalents 21 8,030  9,264 

Current Assets  23,130  18,487 

Short- term Borrowing 34 (571)   

Short-term Creditors 22 (11,430)  (11,376) 

Provisions 22 (60)  0 

Current Liabilities  (12,061)    (11,376) 

Long-term Creditors  (27)  (136) 

NDR Provision for Appeals 22 (1,760)  (1,280) 

Long-term Borrowing 34 (17,403)  0 

Other Long-term Liabilities - Pensions 31 (30,530)  (38,310) 

Long-term Liabilities  (49,720)  (39,726) 

Net Assets  47,479  44,992 

     

Usable Reserves  (20,226)  (20,148) 

Unusable Reserves 17 (27,253)  (24,844) 

Total Reserves  (47,479)  (44,992) 

 

 
 
 
Kelvin Menon BSc ACA 
Executive Head of Finance 
         September  2016  

Page 52



Core Financial Statements 

19 
 

Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council 
during the reporting period.  The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and 
cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities.  The 
amount of net cash flow arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which 
the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the 
recipients of services provided by the Council.  Investing activities represent the extent to which 
cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s 
future service delivery.  Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims 
on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. 
 
 

  2015/16 2014/15 

  Note £'000 £'000 

Net (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services   (3,970) (2,717) 

Adjustments for Non-cash movements   5,182 (2,143) 

Adjustments for items that are investing and financing 
activities 

  (3,003) 2,632 

Net Cash (inflows)/outflows from Operating 
Activities  

(1,791)  (2,228) 

Investing activities 23 (21,842) 9,792 

Financing activities 24 22,399 (39) 

Net (increase) / decrease in cash and cash 
equivalents 

  (1,234) 7,525 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

  9,264 16,789 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 
period 

 8,030 9,264 

Movement in Cash  21 (1,234) (7,525) 

 

 

Page 53



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

20 
 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

1. Basis of Preparation 

The Notes to the Core Financial statements are intended to aid the understanding of the key 
drivers of the financial position of the Council.  Each year the Statement of Accounts document is 
reviewed to ensure that the notes are presented in an order most likely to be of importance to the 
reader.   

2. Accounting Policies 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2015/16 financial year 
and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2016.  The Council is required to prepare an 
annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 which 
require them to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices 
primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015/16 (“the Code”) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2015/16, 
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
Details of the significant Accounting Policies can be found on pages 64 to 77 of this document. 

3. Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires 
the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change (that will 
be required by a new standard) that has been issued but not yet adopted. This applies to the 
adoption of the following new or amended standards within the 2016/17 Code: 
 
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.  This Standard provides guidance on the form of the 
Financial Statements.  The “Telling the Story” review of the presentation of the Local Authority 
financial statements as well as the December 2014 changes to IAS1 under the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) Disclosure Initiative will result in changes to the format of 
the Accounts in 2016/17; the format of the Comprehensive Income an Expenditure Statement 
and the Movement in Reserves Statement will change and introduce a new Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis. 
 
Other minor changes due to the Annual Improvement to the IFRS cycles; IFRS 11 Joint 
Arrangements; IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; IAS 38 Intangible Assets, and IAS 19 
Employee Benefits are minor and are not expected to have a material effect on the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts.  
 
The Code requires implementation from 1 April 2016 and there is therefore no impact on the 
2015/16 Statement of Accounts. 
 

4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 2, the Council has had to make certain 
judgments about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The 
critical judgments made in the statement of accounts are: 
 

Page 54



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

21 
 

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. 
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient enough to provide 
an indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired as a result of a need to close 
facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

 

5. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions which 
take into account historical experience, current trends, professional knowledge and other various 
factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could 
be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 
 
The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2016 for which there is a significant risk 
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results 
differ from assumptions 

Property, plant and equipment Assets are depreciated over 
useful lives that are dependent 
on assumptions about the 
level of repairs and 
maintenance that will be 
incurred in relation to 
individual assets. The current 
economic climate makes it 
uncertain that the Council will 
be able to sustain its current 
spending on repairs and 
maintenance, bringing into 
doubt the useful lives assigned 
to assets. 

If the useful life of assets is 
reduced, depreciation 
increases and the carrying 
amount of the assets falls.  It 
is estimated that the annual 
depreciation charge for 
buildings would increase by 
£0.044m for every year that 
useful lives had to be reduced. 

Pensions liability Estimation of the net liability to 
pay pensions depends on a 
number of complex judgments 
relating to the discount rate 
used, the rate at which 
salaries are projected to 
increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality 
rates and expected returns on 
pension fund assets. A firm of 
consulting actuaries is 
engaged to provide the 
Council with expert advice 
about the assumptions to be 
applied. 

The effects on the net pension 
liability of changes in individual 
assumptions can be 
measured. For instance, a 
0.5% decrease in the real 
discount rate assumption 
would result in an increase in 
the pension liability of 
£8.865m.   However, the 
assumptions interact in 
complex ways. During 
2015/16, the Council’s 
actuaries advised that the net 
pension’s liability has reduced 
by £7.780m.   

Page 55



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

22 
 

 

This list does not include assets and liabilities that have been carried at fair value based on a 
recently observed market price.   

 

6. Events after the Balance Sheet Date  

The Statement of Accounts was certified for issue by the Section 151 Officer at the time of 
signing the Accounts.  Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the Financial 
Statements or Notes.  At the conclusion of the audit the Statement of Accounts will be recertified 
and re-issued and events taking place after this recertification are not reflected in the financial 
statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about 
conditions existing at 31st March 2016, the figures in the Financial Statements and notes have 
been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information. 

7. Members’ Allowances 

The Council paid the following amounts to members of the Council during the year. 
 
  

 2015/16 
£’000 

 2014/15 
£’000 

Allowances 275  275 
Travel and other allowances 1  1  
Mayor 5  5 
Total Allowances 281  281 

 
Local Authorities are required to disclose the amounts paid to each member; these are published 
annually on the Surrey Heath Borough Council website. 

Debtors At 31st March 2016, the 
Council had a balance of 
sundry debtors of £1.168m. A 
review of significant balances 
suggested that an allowance 
for doubtful debts of £1.081m 
was appropriate.   

If collection rates were to 
deteriorate, a full review of the 
bad debt allowance would be 
undertaken to review the debts 
on a case by case basis. 

Provisions Since the introduction of the 
Business Rate Retention 
Scheme effective from 1 April 
2013, Local Authorities are 
liable for successful appeals 
against business rates 
charged to businesses in 
2015/16 and earlier financial 
years, in their proportionate 
share.  A provision has been 
recognised as the best 
estimate that businesses have 
been overcharged based on 
the Valuation Office ratings list 
of appeals, an analysis of 
previously settled appeals, 
and other relevant known 
information. 
 

The Council’s share of the 
business rate appeal provision 
amounted to £1.760m.  For 
each 1% change in success 
rate the provision changes by 
£140k. 

Page 56



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

23 
 

8. Officers’ Remuneration  

8.1 The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior employees is provided below. 
 

 
   

S
a

la
ry

 
(i

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 f
e

e
s

 
&

 a
ll

o
w

a
n

c
e

s
) 

E
x

p
e
n

s
e
s
 

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 i

n
 k

in
d

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

’ 
P

e
n

s
io

n
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 

R
e

tu
rn

in
g

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

T
o

ta
l 

Note 

 
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000   

Chief Executive   
2015/16 115 2 11 19 147 7 154   

2014/15 113 2 10 18 143 3 146   

Executive Head of 
Finance  

2015/16 85  5 13 103  103   

2014/15 83  5 13 101  101  

Executive Head of 
Corporate  

2015/16 26  2 4 32  32 New structure 
effective 1 
December 2015  2014/15     0  0 

Executive Head of 
Corporate (Interim) 

2015/16 49 1  8 58  58 
Interim Structure 
to 30 Nov. 2015 

2014/15 57 2  9 68  68 
Interim Structure 
from June 2014 

Executive Head of 
Corporate 
 (old structure) 

2014/15 12  1 2 15  15 April - May 2014 

Executive Head of 
Transformation  

2015/16 25 1  4 30  30 New structure 
effective 1 
December 2015 2014/15     0  0 

Executive Head of 
Transformation 
(Interim) 

2015/16 52  4 8 64  64 
Interim Structure 
to 30 Nov. 2015 

2014/15 62  4 10 76  76 
 Interim Structure 
from June 2014 

Executive Head of 
Transformation  
(old structure) 

2014/15 26 1  4 31  31 Left 19/08/14 

Executive Head of 
Community  

2015/16 69  5 11 85  85   

2014/15 74  5 12 91  91   

Executive Head of 
Business  

2015/16 23 1  4 28  28 New structure 
effective 1 
December 2015 2014/15     0  0 

Executive Head of 
Business (Interim) 

2015/16 47 1  7 55  55 
Interim Structure 
to 30 Nov. 2015 

2014/15 55 2  9 66  66 
 Interim Structure 
from June 2014 

Executive Head of 
Business 
 (old structure)  

2014/15 9    9  9  Left 15/05/2014 

Executive Head of 
Regulatory  

2015/16 79 2  12 93  93   

2014/15 74 3  12 89  89   

Head of Legal  
2015/16 25   4 29  29 New structure 

effective 1 
December 2015 2014/15     0  0 

Head of Legal and 
Property (interim) 

2015/16 52   8 60  60 
Interim Structure 
to 30 Nov. 2015 

2014/15 63   10 73  73 
 Interim Structure 
from June 2014 

Head of Legal (old 
structure) 

2014/15 11   2 13  13  April - May 2014 

Head of Human 
Resources  

2015/16       0 
Effected by 
interim structure. 
HR function now 
within Corporate 2014/15 10   2 12  12 

Page 57



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

24 
 

 
Following the departure of the Executive Head of Business and Executive Head of 
Transformation during 2014/15, an interim management structure was put in place on 1st June 
2014.  The interim structure was reviewed during 2015/16 and a permanent structure became 
effective from 1st December 2015.  The permanent structure involved a few movements of 
teams between services and the introduction of a new post, Head of Property Development.  
This post had not been filled as at 31st March 2016. 
 
8.2 Remuneration Bands 
 
Council employees (including senior officers included in the table above) receiving more than 
£50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the 
following amounts.  

  2015/16 2014/15 

Remuneration band number of employees number of employees 

£50,000 - £54,999 8 6  

£55,000 - £59,999 3 3  

£60,000 - £64,999 0 1  

£65,000 - £69,999 1 2  

£70,000 - £74,999 3 1  

£75,000 - £79,999 1 3  

£80,000 - £84,999 2 0  

£85,000 - £89,999 1 1  

£90,000 - £94,999 - - 

£95,000 - £99,999 - - 

£100,000 - £104,999 - - 

£105,000 - £109,999 - -  

£110,000- £114,999 - -  

£115,000 - £119,999 - -  

£120,000 - £124,999 0 1  

£125,000 - £129,999 1 0  

Total  20 18  

8.3 Exit packages 

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies for 2015/16 are set out in the table below.  The Council did not terminate the 
contracts on any employees during 2014/15.  
 

Exit package cost 
band (including 
special 
payments) 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

 
re

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
ie

s
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

d
e
p

a
rt

u
re

s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e
x

it
 p

a
c

k
a
g

e
s
 

b
y
 c

o
s
t 

b
a

n
d

  
  

  
  
 

b
 +

 c
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

T
o

ta
l 
c

o
s
t 

o
f 

e
x

it
 p

a
c

k
a
g

e
s
 i

n
 

e
a

c
h

 b
a

n
d

 

  2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 

              £ £ 

                  

£0 - £20,000    2  2  18,069 

£20,001 - £40,000    1  1  21,423 

Total 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 39,492 

Page 58



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

25 
 

 

9.  Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations  

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice 
to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to 
meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
 
The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against. 
 
General Fund Balance 
 
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the authority are required to 
be paid and out of which all liabilities of the authority are to be met, except to the extent that 
statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which 
liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in 
accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises 
the resources that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital 
investment at the end of the financial year. 
 
Capital Receipts Reserve 
 
The capital receipts reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land and other assets which 
are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund capital expenditure, or to be set 
aside to finance historical capital expenditure.  The balance on the reserve shows the resources 
that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year end. 
 
Capital Grants Unapplied 
 
The Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards 
capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require 
repayment of the monies, but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is 
restricted by the grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or 
the financial year in which this can take place.  
 
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 
 
The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the Council 
arising from the increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or 
otherwise do not have fixed or determinable payments.  The balance is reduced when 
investments with accumulated gains are revalued downwards and the gains are lost, or the 
associated investments are disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 

 
  
  

Page 59



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

26 
 

  
     

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 
  Usable reserves  

2015/16  
General Fund 

Balance 
Capital Receipts 

Reserve  

Movement in 
Unusable 
Reserves 

 
£’000 £’000 £’000 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account   

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement : 

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current 
assets 

(626) - 626  

Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment (1,201) - 1,201  

Movements in the market value of investment properties (2,528) - 2,528  

Capital grants and contributions applied -  - 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (394) - 394  

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or 
sale as part of the gain / loss on disposal to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(208) - 208 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 37 - (37) 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 
Balance 

68 - (68) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account: 

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

- - - 

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 
Capital Adjustment Account 

316 - (316) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve: 

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the 
gain / loss on disposal  to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

294 (294) - 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new 
capital expenditure 

- 643 (643) 

Transfer from deferred capital receipts reserve upon 
receipt of cash 

- (23) 23 

Adjustments primarily involving the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve: 

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the 
gain / loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

- - - 

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve: 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and expenditure 
Statement 

(3,204) - 3,204 

Employer's contributions and direct payments to 
pensioners payable in year 

1,974 - (1,974) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account: 

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates 
income credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is different from council tax  and 
non-domestic rates income calculated for the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

1,031 - (1,031) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account: 

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on 
an accruals basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

(19) - 19 

Total Adjustments (4,460) 326 4,134 

  

Page 60



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

27 
 

 
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 

  Usable reserves   

2014/15  
General Fund 

Balance 
Capital Receipts 

Reserve 

Movement in 
Unusable 
Reserves 

 
£’000 £’000 £’000 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account   

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement : 

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current 
assets 

2,060  -  (2,060) 

Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment (279) -  279  

Movements in the market value of investment properties 2,207  -  (2,207) 

Capital grants and contributions applied 283  -  (283) 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (633) -  633  

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or 
sale as part of the gain / loss on disposal to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(129) -  129 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment -  -  -  

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 
Balance 

84  -  (84) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account: 

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

- -  -  

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 
Capital Adjustment Account 

178  -  (178) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve: 

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / 
loss on disposal  to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

- -  - 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 

- 1,254  (1,254) 

Transfer from deferred capital receipts reserve upon receipt 
of cash 

-  -  -  

Adjustments primarily involving the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve: 

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the 
gain / loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

-  -  -  

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve: 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and expenditure 
Statement 

(2,883) -  2,883  

Employer's contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in year 

1,780  - (1,780) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account: 

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates 
income credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is different from council tax  and 
non-domestic rates income calculated for the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

(516) -  516 

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account: 

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in 
the year in accordance with statutory requirements 

2  -  (2) 

Total Adjustments 2,154 1,254 3,408 

Page 61



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

28 
 

 

10.   Grant Income 

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in 2015/16: 
 

  2015/16 2014/15 

  £'000 £’000 

Credited to taxation and non-specific grant income          

New Homes Bonus (1,275) (923) 

Revenue Support Grant (1,095) (1,578) 

Section 31 grants (790) (515) 

Capital Grants (316) (283) 

Other grants (100) (302) 

Total (3,576) (3,601) 

 
Credited to services  

Rent Allowance subsidy (16,059) (16,934) 

Housing Benefit Administration grant (224) (252) 

Family Support (219) (101) 

Personalisation and Prevention (180) (180) 

Council Tax Benefit grant (47) (56) 

Other grants (459) (407) 

Total (17,188) (17,930) 

Total Grants (20,764) (21,531) 

 

The Council has no grants, contributions or donations that have yet to be recognised as income 
because they have conditions attached. 
 

11.  Property, Plant and Equipment  

11.1  Depreciation 
 

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of 
depreciation: 
 

Class Type Useful life range 

Other Buildings 10 to 60 years 
Plant and Equipment 2 to 20 years 

Vehicles 20% Reducing Balance 
Intangible Written off in year of purchase 

Infrastructure 10 to 60 years 
 

11.2  Construction Contracts 
 
At 31st March 2016, the Council has agreed the following scheme:- 
 

• The A30/A331 corridor improvements (Meadows Gyratory) and Blackwater Valley 
Connectivity project at an estimated cost (25%) to the Council of £673,000.  No 
commencement date has been agreed as yet nor contract awarded. 

 

Page 62



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

29 
 

11.3 Revaluations 
 
The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all material property required to be 
measured at fair value is revalued at a minimum of every five years. All valuations for the current 
financial year were carried out by Wilks Head and Eve LLP.  Valuations of land and buildings are 
carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the 
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles, 
plant, furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there is an active second-hand 
market or the latest list prices adjusted for the condition of the asset. 
 

 
Value at fair value as at : 

Other Land & 
Buildings 

£’000 

Surplus 
Assets 
£’000 

Total 
£’000 

31 March 2016 16,019 969 16,988 

31 March 2015 16,982  16,982 

31 March 2014 530  530 

31 March 2013 5,266  5,266 

31 March 2012 4,828  4,828 

Total Cost or Valuation 43,625 969 44,594 

 

 2015/16 

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 &

 
B

u
il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

P
la

n
t 

&
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 U
n

d
e

r 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 

  
  
  
  

  
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 P

la
n

t 
&

 E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Cost or Valuation               

At 1 April 2015 54,300 7,911 154 609 237 963 64,174 

Additions  1 340  1,087  40 1,468 

Revaluation Increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 

(3,109)    717  (2,392) 

Revaluation Increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on 
the Provision of Services  

(1,239)    15  (1,224) 

Derecognition - disposals  (2)     (2) 

Derecognition - other (353)      (353) 

Assets reclassified from Assets under 
Construction 

 9  106  (963) (848) 

Other movements in Cost or Valuation  (3,856) (25)    (3,881) 

At 31 March 2016 49,600 4,402 129 1,802 969 40 56,942 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment              

At 1 April 2015 (5,836) (5,451) (91) 0 0 0 (11,378) 

Depreciation charge  (926) (455) (10)    (1,391) 

Depreciation written out to the Surplus / 
Deficit on the Provision of Services 

764      764 

Impairment losses/reversals recognised 
in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision 
of Services 

23      23 

Other movements in Depreciation and 
Impairment 

 3,856 25    3,881 

At 31 March 2016 (5,975) (2,050) (76) 0 0 0 (8,101) 

Net Book Value        

At 31 March 2016 43,625 2,352 53 1,802 969 40 48,841 

At 31 March 2015 48,464 2,460 63 609 237 963 52,796 

 
Page 63



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

30 
 

2014/15 

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 &

 
B

u
il

d
in

g
s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 
P

la
n

t 
&

 E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s

s
e
ts

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

A
s

s
e
ts

 U
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 
  

  
  

  
  
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 P

la
n

t 
&

 E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Cost or Valuation        

At 1 April 2014 45,794 6,784 154 609 237 161 53,739 

Additions  533 1,154 0 0 0 963 2,650 

Revaluation Increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 

9,251 0 0 0 0 0 9,251 

Revaluation Increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on 
the Provision of Services  

(1,337) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,337) 

Derecognition - disposals 0 (35) 0 0 0 (94) (129) 

Assets reclassified from Assets under 
Construction 

59 8 0 0 0 (67) 0 

At 31 March 2015  54,300 7,911 154 609 237 963 64,174 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment              

At 1 April 2014 (9,629) (4,868) (82) 0 0 0 (14,579) 

Depreciation charge  (1,240) (583) (9) 0 0 0 (1,832) 

Depreciation written out to the 
Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 

3,892 0 0 0 0 0 3,892 

Impairment losses/reversals 
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

1,141 0 0 0 0 0 1,141 

At 31 March 2015 (5,836) (5,451) (91) 0 0 0 (11,378) 

Net Book Value        

At 31 March 2015 48,464 2,460 63 609 237 963 52,796 

At 31 March 2014 36,165 1,916 72 609 237 161 39,160 

12.  Heritage Assets 

A reconciliation of the carrying value of heritage assets held by the Council is shown in the table 
below: 
 

  
Museum 

Civic 
Regalia 

 
Other 

 
Total 

Cost or Valuation £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
1st April 2014 175 111 48 334 
Revaluations 0 0 0 0 
31st March 2015 175 111 48 334 

 
Cost or Valuation 

    

1st April 2015 175 111 48 334 
Revaluations 0 0 0 0 
31st March 2016 175 111 48 334 

 
12.1   Museum 
 
Surrey Heath Museum is a small museum with displays of local history and the environment of 
Surrey Heath, including archaeology, natural history, local social history and the effect of the 
army. It also regularly holds temporary exhibitions and provides additional services for schools. 

Page 64



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

31 
 

 
12.2   Other  
 
A modern piece of artwork is displayed outside the Atrium. The value of this asset is separately 
identifiable at £0.048m. 

12.3   Three Year Summary of Transactions  

  2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 

  £'000 £'000 £’000 

Cost of Acquisitions of Heritage Assets      

Museum Artwork 166 166 166 

Civic Regalia 111 111 111 

Other 48 48 48 

Total Cost of Purchases 325 325 325 

       

Value of Heritage Assets Acquired by Donation      

Museum Artwork 9 9 9 

Total Donations 9 9  9  

  

13. Intangible Assets 

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that software is not an 
integral part of a particular IT system and is not accounted for as part of any hardware item 
recorded in Property, Plant and Equipment. Intangible assets include both purchased licences 
and internally generated software. 

 
During 2015/16 no capital expenditure was incurred in relation to this category.  
  

14.  Investment Properties 

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the Income and Expenditure in relation to Investment 
Properties and changes in their fair value line. 
 

  2015/16  2014/15 

  £’000  £’000 

Rental income from Investment Property (1,786)  (751) 

Direct operating expenses arising from Investment Property 641  324  

Profit on Sale of Assets (97)  0 

Revaluations (Gains)/Losses on Revaluations 2,528  (2,207) 

Net (Income) / Expenditure on Investment Properties 1,286  (2,634) 

 
There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment 
property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The 
Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or  
towards repairs, maintenance or enhancement.   

 
 

Page 65



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

32 
 

 
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the 
year: 
 

  2015/16  2014/15 

  £'000  £'000 

Balance at start of the year 12,534  10,327  

Purchases 15,823  0  

Disposals (205)   

Transfers 1,201   

Net gains / (losses) from fair value adjustments (2,528)  2,207  

Balance at end of the year 26,825  12,534  

  

15. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together 
with the resources that have been used to finance it.  Where capital expenditure is to be financed 
in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results 
in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure 
incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed.  

2015/16  2014/15 

£'000  £'000 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 1,484   0  

Capital investment    

Property, plant and equipment 1,510  1,687 

Investment assets 15,823  0 

Assets under construction 40  963 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 395  633 

Sources of finance    

Capital receipts (643)  (1,254) 

Government grants and other contributions (402)  (461) 

Sums set aside from revenue (69)  (84) 

Unfinanced Capital Expenditure in year 16,654  1,484 

Less: Statutory provision for the financing of Capital Investment (37)  0 

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 18,101  1,484 

 
 
Explanation for Movement in year 

   

Increase / (decrease) in underlying need to borrow 16,617  1,484 

 
  

Page 66



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

33 
 

 

16. Transfers (to) / from Earmarked Reserves 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund Balance to specific Earmarked 
Reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from 
Earmarked Reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2015/16.  
 

 
 
Reserve 

Note * B
a
la

n
c

e
 1

 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1

4
 

N
e
t 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
  

2
0

1
4
/1

5
 

B
a
la

n
c

e
 3

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 i

n
 

2
0

1
5
/1

6
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

u
t 

 
2
0

1
5
/1

6
 

B
a
la

n
c

e
 3

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

 
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 
    

 
    

 
  

Capital Fund (a) 9,704 (337) 9,367 675 (370) 9,672 

Earmarked Revenue purposes         

Affordable Housing (b) 0 316 316 461  777 

Atrium Public Art (c) 12 1 13   13 

Atrium S106 Agreement (d) 367 (26) 341 2 (9) 334 

Blackwater Valley developers’ contributions (e) 137 (31) 106  (5) 101 

Chewing Gum Machine (f) 13 0 13  (3) 10 

Chobham and Town Team Partnership (g) 6 (1) 5   5 

Community Fund 2002 (h) 355 (26) 329  (29) 300 

Community Infrastructure Levy (i) - - - 288  288 

Commuted Sums (j)  786 (95) 691 3 (66) 628 

Crime and Disorder Partnership (k)  125 (3) 122  (13) 109 

Deepcut Village Centre: Alma Dettingen (l)  375 2 377   377 

Frimley Lodge Park 3G pitch (m) - - - 25  25 

Heatherside: multi-use games area (n)   43 (4) 39  (6) 33 

Insurance Reserve Fund (o)   218 (1) 217  (14) 203 

Land drainage  (p)  384 0 384   384 

LLC Personal Search Revocation  (q)  25 0 25 9  34 

New Burdens Fund (r)   49 81 130 14 (41) 103 

Old Dean toddlers playground  (s)  20 0 20   20 

Personalisation and Prevention Partnership 
Fund 

(t)   70 (26) 44 13  57 

Planning S106 Agreements (u)   135 (1) 134 56  190 

Planning Tariff Contributions (v)   405 54 459 438 (284) 613 

Property Maintenance (w)   1,841 73 1,914  (130) 1,784 

Recycling/Refuse Equalisation (x)   206 0 206   206 

Remediation Fund (y)  45 0 45   45 

Safer Surrey Heath  7 (7) 0   0 

SANGS (z)  887 280 1,167 177 (347) 997 

Surrey Family Support Programme (aa)  247 (89) 158 43  201 

Windle Valley Well Being Centre (bb) 60 (60) 0   0 

Total - Revenue Purposes   6,818 437 7,255 1,529 (947) 7,837 

TOTAL   16,522 100 16,622 2,204 (1,317) 17,509 

 

* More detail on the purpose of each earmarked reserve can be found in the Glossary at the end of 
this document. 
 
  

Page 67



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

34 
 

17.  Unusable Reserves 

 
2015/16 

£’000 
 

2014/15 
£’000 

Revaluation Reserve (22,911)  (25,385) 

Capital Adjustment Account (34,987)  (38,712) 

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 0  (23) 
Pensions Reserve 30,530  38,310 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account (56)  975 
Accumulated Absences Account 154  135 
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 17  (144) 

Total Unusable Reserves (27,253)  (24,844) 

17.1 Revaluation Reserve 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the 
value of its property, plant and equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated 
gains are: 
 

• revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

• used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or 

• disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 
The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, the date that the 
reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

Revaluation Reserve 
2015/16 

£’000 

 2014/15 
£’000 

Balance at 1st April (25,385) 
 

(17,141) 

Upward revaluation of assets (2,044) 
 

(9,348) 

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 

4,436 
 

97 

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Non-current Assets not posted 
to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 

2,392 
 

(9,251) 

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation 

82 
 

1,007 

Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 82 
 

1,007 

Balance at 31st March (22,911) 
 

(25,385) 

 

17.2 Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The 
account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, 
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair 

Page 68



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

35 
 

value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside by 
the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 
 
The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and gains 
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council. 
 
The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment 
before 1st April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. 
Note 9 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the account, apart from 
those involving the Revaluation Reserve. 
 
 

  2015/16  2014/15 

  £’000  £’000 

Balance at 1 April (38,712)  (32,680) 

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

    

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 626  (2,060) 

Revaluation losses/(gains) on property, plant and equipment 1,201  279 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 394  633 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of 
the (gain) / loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

208  129 

  2,429  (1,019) 

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve (82)  (1,007) 

Net written out amount of the non-current assets consumed in the 
year 

2,347  (2,026) 

     

Capital financing applied in the year:    

Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new capital expenditure (643)  (1,254) 

Capital grants and contributions credited to Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing 

(316)  0 

Application of grants to capital financing from the capital grants 
unapplied account 

0  (461) 

Capital Expenditure Funded from Reserves (86)   

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged 
against the General Fund Balance 

(37)  0 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund Balance (68)  (84) 

  (1,150)  (1,799) 

Movements in the market value of investment properties debited or 
(credited) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

2,528  (2,207) 

Balance at 31 March (34,987)  (38,712) 

17.3  Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-
current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory 

Page 69



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

36 
 

arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital 
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts.  When the deferred cash settlement 
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.  
  

 
2015/16 

£’000 
 

2014/15 
£’000 

Balance at 1 April (23)  (23) 

Transfer to the capital reserve upon receipt of cash 23  0 

Balance at 31 March 0  (23) 

17.4 Pensions Reserve 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 
provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, 
updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment 
returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.  However, statutory arrangements require 
benefits earned to be financed, as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds 
or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the 
pensions reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and 
current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory 
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to 
be paid. 
 
 2015/16 

£’000 
 2014/15 

£’000 
Balance at 1st April  38,310  31,508 

Actuarial (gains) and losses on pensions and assets and liabilities (9,010)  5,699 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or (credited) 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 
3,204 

 
 

2,883 

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 

(1,974)  (1,780) 

Balance at 31 March 30,530  38,310 

  

17.5 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of 
council tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from 
council tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the 
General Fund from the Collection Fund. 
 

 
2015/16 

£’000 
 

2014/15 
£’000 

Balance at 1 April 975  459 

Amount by which council tax income and non-domestic rates income 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
different from council tax and non-domestic rates income calculated 
for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 

(1,031)  516 

Balance at 31 March (56)  975 

 

Page 70



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

37 
 

17.6 Accumulated Absences Account 

 
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the 
General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the 
year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31st March.  Statutory arrangements 
require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the 
account. 
 
 2015/16 

£’000 
2015/16 

£’000 
2014/15 

£’000 
2014/15 

£’000 

Balance at 1 April  135  137 

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end 
of the preceding year 

(135)  (137)  

Amounts accrued at the end of the current period 154  135  
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
on an accruals basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

 19  (2) 

Balance at 31 March  154  135 

 

17.7 Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 

The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the Council 
arising from the increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or 
otherwise do not have fixed or determinable payments.  The balance is reduced when 
investments with accumulated gains are revalued downwards and the gains are lost, or the 
associated investments are disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 

 2015/16 
£’000 

 2014/15 
£’000 

Balance at 1 April (144)  0 
Upward revaluation of investments   (144) 
Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the 
(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services 

 
161 

  
0 

 17  (144) 
Accumulated gains on assets sold and maturing assets written out to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of 
other investment income 

 
0 

 

  
0 

 

Balance at 31 March 17  (144) 

 

18.  Leases 

18.1. Finance Leases 

The Council has no finance leases. 

18.2. Council as Lessee – Operating Leases 

The Council leases four vans from Apetito to assist in providing the Meals on Wheels service to 
residents and some lease cars. 
 

Page 71



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

38 
 

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
 

  
 

2015/16 
£’000 

  
 

 2014/15 
£’000 

Not later than one year 53  25 
Later than one year and not later than five years 114  68 

Total 167  93 

 
Expenditure charged to the following services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement during the year in relation to these leases was: 
 

 2015/16 
£’000 

 2014/15 
£’000 

Adult Social Care 25  25 
Other services 28  0 
Total 53  25 

 

18.3. Council as Lessor – Operating Leases 

 
The Council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the following 
purposes: 
 

• for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and 
community centres, and 

• for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for 
local businesses. 

 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years 
are: 
 

 2015/16 
£’000 

 2014/15 
£’000 

Not later than one year 1,076  232 
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,949  674 
Later than five years 2,254  1,877 

Total 5,279  2,783 

 
The Council is also Lessor of the Atrium shopping centre in Camberley for which it receives a 
fixed percentage of net rent collected.  In 2015/16 the income was £215,814 and in 2014/15 
£239,968.  The lease is expected to continue into the foreseeable future.  However, on the 
grounds of materiality this has not been separated into the component parts within this note.  

  

Page 72



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

39 
 

 

19. Long Term Debtors 

Details of the Council’s long term debtors are shown below: 
 

 2015/16 
£’000 

 2014/15 
£’000 

Charges on properties 168  176 
Housing loans 0 * 144 

Total 168  320 

*The reduction in the Housing Loans balance reflects the removal of payments that were made 
by the Council on behalf of Flexible Home Improvements Limited.  The corresponding Creditor 
has also been removed. 

20. Short Term Debtors 

Details of the Council’s short term debtors are shown below: 
 2015/16 

£’000 
 2014/15 

£’000 
Central Government bodies 1,245  1,838 
Other Local Authorities 2,168  1,598 
Sundry debtors 1,170  1,295 
Other Entities and Individuals 1,196  2,847 

 5,779  7,578 
Allowance for bad debts (1,080)  (1,065) 

Total 4,699  6,513 

 

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents   

Details of the Council’s cash and cash equivalents are shown below: 
 2015/16 

£’000 
 2014/15 

£’000 
Cash held by the Council  7  (21) 
Bank current accounts 2,013  834 
Short term deposits 6,010  8,451 

Total cash and cash equivalents  8,030  9,264 

 

  

Page 73



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

40 
 

22. Short Term Creditors & Provisions 

22.1 Short Term Creditors 
 
Details of the Council’s short terms creditors are shown below: 
 
 2015/16 

£’000 
 2014/15 

£’000 
Central Government bodies (3,053)  (4,517) 
Other Local Authorities (4,158)  (3,621) 
Other entities and individuals (4,219)  (3,238) 

Total  (11,430)  (11,376) 

 
22.2 Provisions 
 
The 2015/16 provision includes an amount in respect of proposed external audit fees for additional 

work on the 2014/15 annual Statement of Accounts.  The final amount is subject to approval by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited and agreement with the Council. 

The NNDR provision relates to the estimated value of successful appeals that were probable at the 

Balance Sheet date but where the timing and amount were uncertain.  

 NNDR 
Appeals 

£’000 

 Other  
£’000 

 Total 
£’000 

Balance at 1 April 2015 1,280  0  1,280 
Additional provisions made in 2015/16 480  60  540 

Balance at 31 March 2016 1,760  60  1,820 

23. Cash Flow statement – investing activities 

The cash flows for investing activities include the following items: 
 

 
2015/16 

£’000 
 

2014/15 
£’000 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 
intangible assets 

(17,730)  (3,245) 

Purchase of short term and long term investments (6,012)  (9,625) 

Other payments for investing activities 1,597   3,043 

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets 

303   35 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (21,842)  (9,792) 

24. Cash Flow statement – financing activities 

The cash flows for financing activities include the following items: 
 

 2015/16 
£’000 

 2014/15 
£’000 

Cash receipts of short and long term borrowing 17,900   562 
Other receipts from financing activities 4,499   (523) 

Net cash flows from financing activities 22,399   39 

Page 74



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

41 
 

25. Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions 

25.1  Basis of Resource Allocations 

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice.  
However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Council’s Executive on the basis 
of budget reports analysed across portfolios.  These reports are prepared on a different basis 
from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular: 

• no charges (apart from an estimate for asset charges) are made in relation to capital 
expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses in excess of the 
balance on the Revaluation Reserve and amortisations are charged to services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) 

 

• the cost of retirement benefits is based on an estimate of current service cost of benefits 
accrued in the year, however this changes after the actuaries review 

 

• expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to 
portfolios 

 

• some expenditure from reserves is not included within the budget reports that go to the 
Executive 

 
The income and expenditure of the Council’s principal portfolios recorded in the budget reports 
for the year is as follows: 
 
 

Portfolio Income and 
Expenditure 

2015/16 
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 

R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 

 
L

e
g

a
l 

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

Total 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Fees, charges & other 
service income 

(3,459) (1,856) (2,293) (125) (659)  (95)  (2)  (8,489)  

Government grants (3) (291)  (364) (27)  (16,483)  - (21)  (17,189)  

Total Income (3,462)  (2,147)  (2,657) (152) (17,142)  (95) (23)  (25,678) 

          

Employee expenses 1,507  1,723  1,732  977  1,488  419  309  8,155  

Other service expenses 2,295  842  4,536  243  16,664  15  441  25,036 

Support service 
recharges 

752  876  804  444  988  238  137  4,239  

Total Expenditure 4,554  3,441  7,072  1,664  19,140  672  887  37,430  

          

Net expenditure 1,092  1,294  4,415  1,512  1,998  577 864  11,752  

 
 
 

Page 75



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

42 
 

Portfolio Income and 
Expenditure 

2014/15 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 

R
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 

 
L

e
g

a
l*

 
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

Total 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Fees, charges & other 
service income 

(3,843) (960) (2,603) (73) (541)  (1,545) (9,565) 

Government grants (30) (228) (320) (93) (17,243)  (16) (17,930) 

Total income (3,873) (1,188) (2,923) (166) (17,784)  (1,561) (27,495) 

          

Employee expenses 1,734 1,865 1,993 580 1,856  (336) 7,692 

Other service expenses 1,371 382 4,776 695 16,509  (406) 23,327 

Support service 
recharges 

742 881 964 430 1,255  343 4,615 

Total expenditure 3,847 3,128 7,733 1,705 19,620  (399) 35,634 

          

Net expenditure (26) 1,940 4,810 1,539 1,836  (1,960) 8,139 

 
*in 2014/15 Legal was included within Corporate and Transformation Portfolios. 

25.2 Reconciliation of portfolio income and expenditure to cost of services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of portfolio income and expenditure relate 
to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 
2015/16 

£’000 
 

2014/15 
£’000 

Net expenditure in the Portfolio Analysis 11,752  8,139 

Net expenditure of services and support services not included in the 
analysis 

2,222  1,943 

Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

13,974  10,082 

  

  

Page 76



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

43 
 

25.3 Reconciliation to subjective analysis 

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of portfolio income and expenditure relate 
to a subjective analysis of the surplus or deficit on the provision of services included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

  

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 n
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
d

e
c

is
io

n
 

m
a

k
in

g
 

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 

T
o

ta
l 

2015/16 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

            

Fees, charges & other 
service income 

(8,489)  (8,489)  (8,489) 

Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 

   1,286 1,286 

Income from council tax    (8,019) (8,019) 

Income from non-domestic 
rates 

   (2,101) (2,101) 

Past service gain on 
pensions 

   1,226 1,226 

Government grants and 
contributions 

(17,189)  (17,189) (2,785) (19,974) 

Total income (25,678)  (25,678) (10,393) (36,071) 

       

Employee expenses 8,155  8,155  8,155 

Other service expenses 25,036  25,036  25,036 

Support service recharges 4,239  4,239  4,239 

Depreciation, amortisation 
and impairment 

 2,222 2,222  2,222 

Interest payments    (136) (136) 

Precepts & levies    525 525 

Total expenditure 37,430 2,222 39,652 389 40,041 

(Surplus) / deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

11,752 2,222 13,974 (10,004) 3,970 

 
  

Page 77



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

44 
 

 

  P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 n
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
d

e
c

is
io

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 

T
o

ta
l 

2014/15 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

            

Fees, charges & other 
service income 

(9,565)  (9,565)  (9,565) 

Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 

   (2,633) (2,633) 

Income from council tax    (7,756) (7,756) 

Income from non-domestic 
rates 

   (1,152) (1,152) 

Past service gain on 
pensions 

   1,348 1,348 

Government grants and 
contributions 

(17,930)  (17,930) (2,874) (20,804) 

Total income (27,495) 0 (27,495) (13,067) (40,562) 

       

Employee expenses 7,693  7,693  7,693 

Other service expenses 23,326  23,326  23,326 

Support service recharges 4,615  4,615  4,615 

Depreciation, amortisation 
and impairment 

- 1,943 1,943  1,943 

Interest payments -   (241) (241) 

Precepts & levies -   509 509 

Total expenditure 35,634 1,943 37,577 268 37,845 

(Surplus) /  deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

8,139 1,943 10,082 (12,799) (2,717)  

 
 

26. Trading Operations 

The table below shows those operating units of the Council where service managers are 
required to operate within a commercial environment and balance their budget by generating 
income from other parts of the Council, other organisations and the general public. 
 
 2015/16 2014/15 

 
Turnover 

£’000 

(Surplus)/ 
deficit 
£’000 

Turnover 
£’000 

(Surplus)/ 
deficit 
£’000 

Camberley Theatre (651) 814 (757) 2,044 

Car parks (2,042) 364 (1,890) (1,270) 

Building Control -chargeable (292) (18) (307) (59) 

Total (2,985) 1,160 (2,954) 715 

 
Camberley Theatre 

 
The Council owns and manages a theatre that puts on a variety of productions.  

Page 78



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

45 
 

Car Parks 

The car parks are owned and managed by the Council. 
 
Building Control 
 
Under Regulations the Council is required to monitor the position on Building Control chargeable 
activities and demonstrate, taking one financial year with another, that the chargeable service as 
nearly as possible equates to the costs incurred. 
 

27. Agency Services 

The Council provides the following services on behalf of Surrey County Council and Hampshire 
County Council through Agency Agreements: 

• Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS) agreements in relation to Swan 
Lakes, Hawley Meadows, Shepherds Meadows and Strategic Access Management & 
Monitoring (SAMM) 

• Management of two gypsy sites at Swift Lane and Kalima, 

• Civil parking enforcement and controlled parking zones.  

 
2015/16 

£’000 
 

2014/15 
£’000 

    

Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS)    

Income (734)  (1,190) 

Expenditure 1,082  923 

(Surplus) / deficit on the agency arrangement 348  (267) 

Gypsy Sites    

Income (132)  (146) 

Expenditure 117  331                               

(Surplus)/deficit on the agency arrangement (15)  185 

Parking Services    

Income (353)  (671) 

Expenditure 341  684 

(Surplus)/deficit on the agency arrangement (12) * 13 

 
* Under the Agency Agreement for Civil Parking Enforcement the Council will receive a 20% share 
of any surpluses, and this is accrued to the Council's Income. 

28. External Audit costs 

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, 
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the 
Council’s external auditors: 

 

 
2015/16 

£’000 
 

2014/15 
£’000 

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the 
appointed auditor for the year 

42  56 

Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns for the 
year 

8  15 

Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

50  71 

Page 79



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

46 
 

 
In addition to the costs shown in the table above a Provision has been made in respect of 
additional costs proposed by KPMG for the audit of 2014/15, which have yet to be agreed.    

29. Related Parties 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or 
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or 
influenced by the Council.  Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent 
to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might 
have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.  In this 
context related parties include: 

• Central Government, 

• Elected Members of the Council,  

• Officers of the Council, and 

• Other Public Bodies. 
 

Central Government 
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council. It is 
responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates, provides 
the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the 
transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits).  
Grants receivable from government departments are set out in Note 10.  
 
Members 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. 
Three members are also members of Surrey County Council but have no personal interest in any 
transactions. Grants totalling £19,702 were paid to 5 voluntary organisations in which 6 members 
had an interest. The grants were made with proper consideration of declarations of interest. The 
relevant members did not take part in any discussion or decision relating to the grants. Details of 
all these transactions are recorded in the Register of Members’ Interests, open to public 
inspection at Surrey Heath House during office hours.  
 
The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2015/16 is shown in Note 7. 
 
Officers 
Chief Officers have the ability to influence the Council.  For 2015/16, no outside interests were 
declared. 
 
Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by Central Government) 
The Council had significant financial transactions with both Surrey County Council and Surrey 
Police Authority, details of which are shown in the Collection Fund Statement for 2015/16.   

30. Prior Period Adjustments  

There have been no adjustments to prior periods in these Financial Statements.    
  

Page 80



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

47 
 

31. Defined Benefit Pension schemes 

31.1. Participation in Pension Schemes 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes 
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not 
actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments 
that need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
The Council participates in two post-employment schemes: 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Surrey County Council – this is 
a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay 
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with 
investment assets. 
 
Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement – this 
is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards 
are made.  However there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and 
cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due. 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme operates under the regulatory framework for this 
scheme, and the governance of the local scheme is the responsibility of the Pensions Committee 
of Surrey County Council. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions Fund 
Regulations.  The investment managers of the fund are appointed by the pensions committee, 
consisting of the Head of Finance for Surrey County Council, the Pension Fund Manager, four 
county Councilors, two district council representatives, an employee representative and two 
professional investment advisors.   
 
The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory 
changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, 
bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme.  These are 
mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund the 
amounts required by statute as described in the accounting policies note (see Note 2). 

  

Page 81



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

48 
 

31.2. Transactions relating to Post-Employment Benefits 

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they 
are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 
However, the charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable 
in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the 
General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been 
made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance 
via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 
 

  

 Local Government Pension 
Scheme  

   2015/16  2014/15 

   £'000    £'000  

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement      

Service Costs  included in Cost of Services      

- Current Service Cost 1,978  1,535  

Included in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure     

Net interest expense  1,226  1,348 

Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus 
or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

3,204  2,883 

Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement  

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:  

- Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in 
the net interest expense) 

1,390  (5,414) 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial 
assumptions 

(8,510)  11,991  

- Other experience (1,890)  (878) 

Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(9,010)  5,699  

 

31.3. Assets and Liabilities in relation to Post-employment Benefits 

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of its 
defined benefit plans are: 
 

 
Local Government Pension 

Scheme 

 
2015/16 

£’000 
 

2014/15 
£’000 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation (95,714)  (103,742) 

Fair value of plan assets 65,184  65,432 

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (30,530)  (38,310) 

 
 
 

Page 82



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

49 
 

31.4. Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets: 

  Funded Assets: local 
government pension 

scheme 

Unfunded Assets: 
discretionary benefits 

arrangements   

  2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Opening fair value of scheme assets 65,432 58,577 0 0 

        

Interest Income 2,079 2,495  - -  

Remeasurement gain/(loss):       

- the return on plan assets, excluding 
the amount included in the net interest 
expense 

(1,390) 5,414  - -  

The effect of changes in foreign 
exchange rates 

      

Contributions from employer 1,762 1,557  212 223  

Contributions from employees in the 
scheme 

472 467     

Benefits paid  (3,171) (3,078) (212) (223) 

Closing fair value of scheme assets 65,184 65,432  0 0  

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns 
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed 
interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the 
respective markets. 

31.5.  Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities 

  Funded Liabilities: 
Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

Unfunded 
Liabilities: 

discretionary 
benefits 

arrangements   

  2015/16  2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

          

Opening Balance at 1 April (103,742) (90,085) 
 

  

         

Current Service cost (1,978) (1,535)     

Interest cost (3,305) (3,843)     

Contributions from Scheme participants (472) (467)     

-  Actuarial gains/losses arising from 
changes in financial assumptions 

8,510 (11,991)     

-  Other Experience 1,890 878      

Unfunded Benefits paid 0   0 212 223  

Benefits paid 3,171 3,078     

Closing Balance at 31 March (95,926) (103,965) 212 223  

Page 83



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

50 
 

31.6. Local Government Pension Scheme Assets 

 
The fair value of the Local Government Scheme assets are shown in the table below: 
 

 
Period Ended 31 March 2016 Period Ended 31 March 2015 

Asset category 

Percenta
ge of 
Total 

Assets 

Quoted 
prices in 

active 
markets 

Quoted 
prices not 

in active 
markets Total 

Quoted 
prices in 

active 
markets 

Quoted 
prices not 

in active 
markets Total 

% 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

All 3% 1,820  1,820 1,223   1,223  

Equity Securities:  
      

Consumer 8% 5,236  5,236 4,901   4,901  

Manufacturing 6% 3,985  3,985 3,544   3,544  

Energy and Utilities 3% 1,831  1,831 2,144   2,144  

Financial Institutions 7% 4,659  4,659 4,192   4,192  

Health and Care 4% 2,297  2,297 2,302   2,302  

Information Technology 5% 3,530  3,530 3,125   3,125  

Other 0% 96  96    

Bonds        

Corporate Bonds 
(investment grade) 

4% 2,789  2,789 2,381   2,381  

Corporate bonds (non-
investment grade) 

0% 173  173 263   263  

UK Government 0% 0  0 1,473   1,473  

Other 0% 87  87 609   609  

Private Equity:        

All 4% 0 2,593 2,593 0  2,455  2,455  

Real Estate        

UK Property 6% 1,707 2,227 3,934 1,842  2,287  4,129  

Overseas Property 1%  511 511 0  32  32  

Investment Funds and Unit Trusts: 

Equities 26% 16,968  16,968 19,059   19,059  

Bonds 11% 6,994  6,994 6,116   6,116  

Other 12% 8,074  8,074 7,546   7,546  

Derivatives:        

Interest Rate - -  - (9)  (9) 

Foreign Exchange - (393)  (393) (52)  (52) 

 
100% 59,853 5,331 65,184 60,658  4,774  65,432  

31.7.  Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an 
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about 
mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and Discretionary 
Benefits liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of 

Page 84



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

51 
 

actuaries, estimates for the County Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the 
scheme as at 1st April 2013. 
 
The principal assumptions used by the Actuary are shown in the table below:  
 

Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

2015/16 2014/15 

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:  

Equity investments 3.6% 3.2% 

Bonds 3.6% 3.2% 

Property 3.6% 3.2% 

Other 3.6% 3.2% 

Mortality assumptions: Years Years 

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:   

     Men 22.5 22.5 

     Women 24.6 24.6 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:   

     Men 24.5 24.5 

     Women 26.9 26.9 

   

Rate of inflation 2.2% 2.4% 

Rate of increase in salaries 3.7% 3.8% 
Rate of increase in pensions 2.2% 2.4% 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 3.5% 3.2% 
 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the Actuary’s assumptions set out 
in the above table.  The sensitivity analysis in the table below have been determined based on 
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, 
and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes whilst all the other 
assumptions remain constant.  The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life 
expectancy increases and decreases for men and women.  In practice, this is unlikely to occur, 
and changes in some assumptions may be interrelated.  The estimations in the sensitivity 
analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme i.e. on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method.  The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity 
analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period. 
 

Change in assumptions at 31 March 2016 

Approximate % 
increase to Employer 

Liability 

Approximate 
monetary amount  

£’000 

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 9% 8,868 

1 year increase in member life expectancy 3% 2,871 

0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 2% 1,908 

0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 7% 6,885 

31.8.  Impact on Council’s cash flows 

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as 
possible. The Council has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding 
level of 100% over the next 20 years. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The 
next triennial valuation is due to be completed by  31 March 2016. 

 

Page 85



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

52 
 

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public 
Pensions Services Act 2013. Under the act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in 
England and Wales and other main existing public service schemes may not provide benefits in 
relation to service after 31 March 2014 (or service after 31 March 2015 for other main existing 
public service pension schemes in England and Wales). The Act provides for scheme 
regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average revalued 
earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits. 

 
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post 
employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £95.7m has a substantial impact on the 
net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements 
for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy: 
 
The deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over 
the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed by the 
scheme actuary; and finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when 
the pensions are actually paid. 

 
The Council anticipates paying £1.9m contributions to the scheme in 2016/17. 
 
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 17.2 
years.  

32.  Contingent Liabilities 

The Council has identified the following Contingent Liabilities: 
 

• A group of Property Search Companies sought to claim refunds of fees paid to the Council to 
access land charges data. The parties have reached agreement on the claims.  The Council 
has agreed to pay the property search companies legal costs to be subject to detailed 
assessment by way of costs only proceedings if not agreed.  The Council is in discussions 
with the claimants about the costs aspect of the claim.  At present it is not possible to put a 
final value on these potential liabilities and so the Council has instead recognised a 
contingent liability. 

 

• The Council was a member of the Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited.  The Council is party 
to a reserve scheme of arrangement with the company which was entered into in October 
1993 after the company ceased trading in September 1992.  Following unfavourable litigation 
in the Supreme Court, the directors have triggered a contingent scheme of arrangement 
under section 425 of the Companies Act 1985 as a solvent run off could not be foreseen.  
The Council’s total exposure under the scheme of arrangement is £141k, against which a 
total levy of 25% has been raised; £21k in 2014/15 and £14k in 2015/16.  These amounts 
have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account in the respective 
years.  The Council’s remaining potential liability from unpaid claims at 31 March 2016 was 
£105k which the Council holds in the earmarked Insurance Reserve Fund.  Given the nature 
of the claims, projections remain uncertain and therefore no provision has been made and 
the Council is maintaining its earmarked reserve to fully cover its exposure. 

 

• The Council has received a fresh claim relating to mesothelioma of a former employee of 
Bagshot Rural District Council after an earlier claim was struck out by the Court. The claim 
has been made against two former employers of which Bagshot RDC was one in the 
1950s.  This Council was incorporated into Surrey Heath when the borough was 
created.  Because of delay in bringing the second claim, there is a hearing later this year to 
determine if the claim should proceed against the Council. The Council’s position is 
complicated because there are two employers.  However, the claim to be defended on legal 

Page 86



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

53 
 

advice.  As the outcome is unknown no provision has been made.  Depending on the 
outcome, there could be a future liability, which may exceed £100,000. 

  
• A firm of commercial property agents has made an application for 80% mandatory charitable 

relief from business rates on behalf of a local NHS Trust.  The application demands a 
discount for the 2016/17 financial year and also a rebate covering the previous six years 
which, if approved would amount to a cost of approximately £2m for the Council.  In the past 
NHS trusts have been considered as public sector-funded organisations rather than charities, 
partly because they have boards of directors rather than trustees and on these grounds the 
application has been rejected.  Over 100 Councils have received similar letters and the Local 
Government Association has taken legal advice over the issue and believes the councils 
have grounds to reject the applications.  It may be that a test case through the courts may be 
required before this issue is fully resolved.    

33.  Contingent Assets 

The Council has a number of charges on properties, in respect of expenditure incurred by the 
Council on those properties.  These amounts are included within Long Term debtors and have 
no set date for repayment.  The charge on the property is released when repayment is received 
and fees and interest then become due.  It is estimated that the total of these future fees and 
interest is in the region of £150,000. 

34.  Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments are contractual arrangements that give rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

34.1. The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the Balance Sheet: 

  Long Term Current 

 Financial Assets 2015/16 2014/15 
March 

2015/16 
March 

2014/15 
March   £’000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Investments        

Loans and receivables – 
Investments Principal 

2,000 3,500 6,302 2,676 

Available-for-sale financial assets 7,962 8,123 4,008 0 

Loans and receivables – 
Investments accrued interest 

- - 40 - 

Investments 9,962 11,623 10,350 2,676 

Loans and receivables –  
Cash & Cash equivalents 

- - 8,020 9,264 

Loans and receivables – Cash & 
Cash equivalents accrued interest 

- - 10 - 

Total Investments 9,962 11,623 18,380 11,940 

Debtors       

Financial assets carried at contract 
amounts 

168 320 4,699 6,514 

Total Financial Assets 
Borrowings 

10,130 11,943 23,079 18,454 

     

Page 87



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

54 
 

 
Long 
Term 

  Current  

Financial Liabilities 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 

Borrowing £’000 £'000 £’000 £'000 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
– Loans  Principal 
 

(17,403) - (374) - 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
– Loans accrued interest 
 

- - (197) - 

 (17,403) - (571) - 

        

Creditors       

Financial liabilities carried at contract 
amount 

(27) (136) (11,252) (11,376) 

Total Creditors (27) (136) (11,252) (11,376) 

34.2. Reclassifications 

The following investments were reclassified from Long Term Investments to Short Term 
Investments at the year end:  London Borough of Islington (£2.0m) and Lancashire County 
Council (£1.5m).  

34.3. Income, expense, gains and losses  

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
relation to financial instruments consist of the following items: 

 

2014/15   2015/16 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
lia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

m
e
a

s
u

re
d

 a
t 

a
m

o
rt

is
e

d
 

c
o

s
t 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a
s
s
e

ts
: 

lo
a
n
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
a

b
le

s
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a

s
s
e

ts
: 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
s
a

le
 

A
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
fi
t 

a
n
d

 l
o

s
s
 

T
o

ta
l 

  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
lia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

m
e
a

s
u

re
d

 a
t 

a
m

o
rt

is
e

d
 

c
o

s
t 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a
s
s
e

ts
: 

lo
a
n
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
a

b
le

s
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a

s
s
e

ts
: 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
s
a

le
 

A
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
fi
t 

a
n
d

 l
o

s
s
 

T
o

ta
l 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000   £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

- - - - 0  Interest expense 454     454 

- - - - 0  Fee expense 6  0  12  0  18  

0  0  0  0  0  
Total expense in Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 

460  0  12  0  472  

0  (157) (84) 0  (241) Interest income  (114) (17)  (131) 

- - - - 0  
Interest income accrued on 
impaired financial assets 

 (32)   (32) 

- - - - 0  Increases in fair value  (93)   (93) 

- - - - 0  Dividend income   (352)  (352) 

0  (157) (84) 0  (241) 
Total income in Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 

0 (239) (369)  (608) 

0  0  (144) 0  (144)  (Gains) on revaluation   (87)  (87) 

- - - - 0  Losses on revaluation   248  248 

0  0  (144)  0  (144)  

(Surplus) / deficit arising on 
revaluation of financial assets in 
Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 

  161  161 

 0 (157) (228) 0  (385) Net (gain) / loss for the year 460 (239) (196) 0 25 

Page 88



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

55 
 

The Council has no soft loans. 

34.4. Fair values of assets and liabilities 

Financial assets classified as available for sale and all derivative assets and liabilities are carried 
in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most assets, including bonds, treasury bills and shares in 
money market funds and other pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the market price. The fair 
values of other instruments have been estimated calculating the net present value of the 
remaining contractual cash flows at 31st March 2016, using the following methods and 
assumptions: 

• Certificates of deposit and forward loan contracts have been discounted at market interest 
rates for instruments of similar credit quality and remaining term to maturity. 

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and all non-derivative financial liabilities are 
carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.  Their fair values have been estimated by 
calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31st March 2016, 
using the following methods and assumptions: 

• Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows 
over the whole life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans. 

• The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market 
rates for similar instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31st March. 

• The fair values of financial guarantees have been estimated based on the likelihood of the 
guarantees being called and the likely payments to be made. 

• No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument. 
• The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is 

assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.  

Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy: 
Level 1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities, e.g. bond prices.  
 
Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the 
asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments.       
 
Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash 
flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness. 
 

Recurring Fair Value 
Measurements  

Input level 
in Fair 
Value 
Hierarchy 

Valuation technique used to measure 
Fair Value  

31 
March 
2016 
Fair 

Value 

31 
March 
2015 
Fair 

Value 

   
 

  £000 £000 

      
Available for Sale - Long 
Term Investments 

 Level 1 
 Quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets 

7,962  8,123  

        

Page 89



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

56 
 

The Council held £8.0m (2015 - £8.1m) in Long Term Investments which are Pooled Funds 
comprised of the CCLA Property Fund £2.1m, M&G Investments £2.9m and Threadneedle 
Investments £3.0m.   

It is the Council's stated intention that these investments are being held for a longer term to generate 
higher returns.  

There were no transfers between input levels during the financial year 2015/16.  

There has been no change in valuation technique used during the year for the financial instruments. 

 

   
Fair 

value 
level 

2015/16 2014/15 
  Balance 

Sheet  
Fair 

value 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair 
value 

   £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost: 

Loans from PWLB 2 16,519 17,204   

Other Loans 2 1,455 1,467   

Total  17,974 18,671 0 0 
Liabilities for which fair value is not 
disclosed* 

 
43,569 43,569 51,102 51,102 

Total Financial Liabilities  61,543 62,240 51,102 51,102 

 

Recorded on Balance Sheet as:       

Short Term Creditors 11,252  11,376  

Short Term Borrowing 571    

Long Term Creditors 27  136  

Long Term Borrowing 17,403    

Other Long Term Liabilities 32,290  39,590  

Total Financial Liabilities 61,543  51,102  

 
*The fair value of short term financial liabilities including trade payables is assumed to approximate to 
the carrying amount. 
 
The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying 
amount because the authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the interest rate 
payable is higher than the current rates available for similar loans as at the Balance Sheet date. 

35. Nature and extent of risks of Financial Instruments 

35.1. Introduction 

The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (and subsequent 
amendments) and complies with The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 
(both revised in November 2011).  As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, 
the Council approves a Treasury Management Strategy before the commencement of each 
financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks associated with 
financial instruments. The Council also produces Treasury Management Practices specifying the 
practical arrangements to be followed to manage these risks.  

 

Page 90



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

57 
 

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in compliance with 
the Communities and Local Government Guidance on Local Government Investments.  This 
Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather than yield.  The 
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and its Treasury Management Practices are based on 
seeking the highest rate of return consistent with the proper levels of security and liquidity 

 

The main risks covered are:  

• Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to meet its 
contractual obligations, causing a loss to the Council.  

• Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Council might not have the cash available to make 
contracted payments on time. 

• Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of 
changes in market variables such as interest rates or equity prices. 

35.2.   Credit risk   

Investments 

The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are only placed with organisations 
of high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy.  These include commercial 
entities with a minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK government, other local authorities, 
and organisations without credit ratings upon which the Council has received independent 
investment advice.  Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect predictors of default, the Council 
has regard to other measures including credit default swap and equity prices when selecting 
commercial entities for investment. The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the 
counterparty types in the table below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and the time 
limits shown. 

Approved Investment Counterparties and Limits 

Credit 
Rating 

Banks 
Unsecured 

Banks  
Secured 

Building 
Societies 

Government Corporates 
Registered 
Providers 

UK Govt n/a n/a n/a 
£ Unlimited 

n/a n/a 
50 years 

AAA 
£3m £3m £2m 

n/a 
£2m £2m 

 5 years 10 years  3 years  20 years  10 years 

AA+ 
£3m £3m £2m 

n/a 
£2m £2m 

3 years 10 years 3 years 10 years 10 years 

AA 
£3m £3m £2m 

n/a 
£2m £2m 

3 years 5 years 3 years 5 years 5 years 

AA- 
£3m £3m £2m 

n/a 
£2m £2m 

3 years 4 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 

A+ 
£3m £3m £2m 

n/a 
£2m £2m 

2 years 3 years 2 years 3 years 3 years 

A 

£3m £2m £2m 

n/a 

£1m £2m 

12 months 2 years 
12 

months 
2 years  2 years 

A- 

£3m £2m £1m 

n/a 

£1m £2m 

 6 months 
12 

months 
 6 months  12 months  1 years 

BBB+ 
£3m £1m £1m 

n/a n/a 
£1m 

100 days 
6 

months 
100 days  6 months 

Page 91



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

58 
 

Credit 
Rating 

Banks 
Unsecured 

Banks  
Secured 

Building 
Societies 

Government Corporates 
Registered 
Providers 

BBB or BBB- 

£1m 

N/A n/a n/a n/a n/a next day 
only 

None   n/a 
£1m 

n/a n/a n/a 
6 months 

Pooled funds £2m per fund 

Challenger 
Banks 

£2m for 12 months 

Supranational 
Banks 

£3m for up to 5 years where rated A or above 

UK Local 
Councils 

£2m per authority for up to 5 years 

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and 
building societies of £5m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to 
make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. 
Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their 
commitments.  A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Council’s deposits, but there was no 
evidence at the 31 March 2016 that this was likely to crystallise.  

Receivables 

Customers are assessed for their ability to pay depending on the size of the debt, financial 
position, past experience and any other relevant factors. The Council’s credit risk on lease 
receivables is mitigated by its legal ownership of the assets leased, which can be repossessed 
if the debtor defaults on the lease contract.  The following analysis summarises the Council’s 
potential maximum exposure credit risk, based on the experience gathered over the last five 
financial years on the level of default on trade debtors, adjusted for current market conditions. 
Only those receivables meeting the definition of a financial asset are included. 

 

  

Gross 
balance 

of 
debtors 

£’000 

Average % 
default based 
on previous 
experience 

Average % 
default 

adjusted for 
current 

conditions 

Credit risk 
exposure 

31/03/2016 
£’000 

Credit risk 
exposure 
31/03/2015 

£’000  

Sundry debtors     264  3% 3%       8           6  

Refuse charges         3  5% 5%           -               -  

Housing rents       87  30% 30%       26         26  

Lease receivables       44  5% 5%        2           3  

TOTAL     398 43% 43%       36         34  

35.3.   Liquidity risk 

The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loan 
Board and other local authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building societies.  There is 
no perceived risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.  It is 
however exposed to the risk that it may need to refinance a proportion of its borrowing at a time 

Page 92



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

59 
 

of unfavourably high interest rates.  This risk is managed by maintaining a spread of fixed rate 
loans. 

The maturity analysis of the principal sums borrowed is as follows: 
 

Time to maturity 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

(years) £’000 £’000 

Not over 1                        559                     -   

Over 1 but not over 2                        388                     -   

Over 2 but not over 5                      3,187                     -   

Over 5 but not over 10                        745                     -   

Over 10 but not over 20                      1,907                     -   

Over 20 but not over 30                      2,640                     -   

Over 30 but not over 40                      3,653                     -   

Over 40                      4,763                     -   

Total                   17,842                     -   
 

35.4. Market Risks:  Interest rate risk 

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its 
borrowings and investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the 
authority.  For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:  

• borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense will rise 

• borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall   

• investments at variable rates – the interest income credited will rise 

• investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 
 
Investments classed as “loans and receivables” and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, 
so changes in their fair value will have no impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 
However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and 
investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.  Movements in 
the fair value of fixed rate investments classed as “available for sale” will be reflected in Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate 
these risks by setting upper limits on its net exposures to fixed and variable interest rates.  At 31 
March 2016, £5.0m (2015: £0m) of net principal borrowed (i.e. debt net of investments) was 
exposed to fixed rates and £0m (2015: £0m) to variable rates.  If all interest rates had been 1% 
higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be as shown in the table 
below: 
 
 

  £’000 

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 0 
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate 
investments (4) 

Decrease in fair value of investments held for trading 0 

Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 0 
Increase in government grant receivable for financing 
costs 0 
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 

(4) 

Page 93



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

60 
 

  £’000 
Decrease in fair value of available for sale financial 
assets 

248 

Impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 245 

Decrease in fair value of loans and receivables * 0 

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings/liabilities * (2,542) 

 
* No impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 
A fall in interest rates will have the opposite effect. 

35.5. Market Risks:  Price risk 

The market prices of the Council’s fixed rate bond investments and its units in pooled bond funds 
are governed by prevailing interest rates and the market risk associated with these instruments is 
managed alongside interest rate risk.  

The Council’s investment in a pooled property fund is subject to the risk of falling commercial 
property prices.  This risk is limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to property investments 
of £2.0m.  A 5% fall in commercial property prices would result in a £0.104m charge to Other 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure – this would have no impact on the General Fund until the 
investment was sold.   

The Council’s investment in a pooled equity funds is subject to the risk of falling share prices.  
This risk is limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to equity investments of £2.0m.  A 5% fall 
in share prices would result in a £0.1m charge to Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure – 
this would have no impact on the General Fund until the investments were sold. 

35.6. Market risks:  Foreign exchange risk 

Icelandic Banks 
Early in October 2008, the Icelandic banks Landsbanki and Glitnir collapsed and went into 
Administration. On 28th October 2011 the Icelandic Supreme Court ruled that UK local 
authorities’ claims qualified as priority claims under Icelandic bankruptcy legislation. The Council 
now only has money relating to Glitnir. 
 
Glitnir’s winding up board made full and final distribution on the 16th March 2012. The 
distribution was made in a basket of currencies, which, with the exception of the amount paid in 
Icelandic Kronor (ISK) were converted into sterling on the day of receipt. The ISK amount is still 
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the Icelandic government and is being held in an 
Escrow account earning interest over the year at 4.2%. For accounts purposes at the 31st March 
2016 the ISK was converted into £ sterling using a prevailing exchange rate giving an exchange 
gain of £93k. The total balance of £801k is recorded on the Balance Sheet as a short term 
investment. The final repayment of this amount will depend on the lifting of exchange controls 
and the prevailing exchange rate and may therefore be lower than value recorded in sterling on 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016. 
 
Due to currency controls in Iceland the Council holds Icelandic Krona ISK 143,196,625 in escrow 
in Iceland. This has been converted at the official interest rate as at the 31st March 2016 of ISK 
178.571 to the £ with any exchange gains and losses being taken to the income and expenditure 
account, although these are not realised. As the Icelandic Kronor is not convertible at this time 
the Council is exposed to exchange risks arising from movements in currency values.  

 
 

Page 94



Collection Fund 

61 
 

Collection Fund  

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing 
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the 
billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and 

the Government of council tax and non-domestic rates. 

 

 
2015/16 2014/15 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 

R
a
te

s
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 
T

a
x

 

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 

R
a
te

s
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 
T

a
x

 

T
o

ta
l 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

INCOME          

Council Tax Receivable  61,572 61,572   59,854  59,854  

Business Rates Receivable 36,212  36,212 33,956    33,956  

 
36,212 61,572 97,784 33,956  59,854  93,810  

EXPENDITURE          

Apportionment of Previous Year Surplus          

   Central Government (739)  (739) (33)   (33) 

   Surrey Heath Borough Council (592) 120 (472) (26) 169  143  

   Surrey County Council (148) 750 602 (7) 1,046  1,039  

   Surrey Police & Crime Commissioner  130 130   185  185  

 
(1,479) 1,000 (479) (66) 1,400  1,334  

Precepts, Demands and Shares          

   Central Government 16,862  16,862 16,462    16,462  

   Surrey Heath Borough Council 13,490 7,869 21,359 13,169  7,648  20,817  

   Surrey County Council 3,372 44,641 48,013 3,292  43,333  46,625  

   Surrey Police & Crime Commissioner  7,902 7,902   7,671  7,671  

 
33,724 60,412 94,136 32,923  58,652  91,575  

Charges to the Collection Fund          

   Write off for uncollectible amounts  57 57 349  166  515  

   Increase/(Decrease) in Bad Debt Provision 64 (139) (75) 11  13  24  

   Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for 
Appeals 

1,199  1,199 1,800    1,800  

   Cost of Collection 122  122 122    122  

   Transitional Protection payments 39  39    

 
1,424 (82) 1,342 2,282  179  2,461  

       

Total Expenditure 33,669 61,330 94,999 35,139  60,231  95,370  

          
Surplus/(Deficit) arising during the year 2,543 242 2,785 (1,183) (377) (1,560) 

          

Surplus/(Deficit) b/fwd 1st April  (2,992) 1,735 (1,257) (1,809) 2,112  303  

          

Surplus/(Deficit) c/fwd 31st March (449) 1,977 1,528 (2,992) 1,735  (1,257) 

  

Page 95



Collection Fund 

62 
 

Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) 

NDR is organised on a national basis.  The Government specifies the rate poundage, and 
subject to the effects of transitional arrangements, the rates payable are calculated by 
multiplying the rateable values by the rate poundage.  As at 31st March 2016, the total non-
domestic rateable value of properties owned by the Council was £1.572m.  The 2015/16 national 
non-domestic rate multiplier was 48.0p for small businesses and 49.3p for other businesses.   

Calculation of council tax base 

Council tax income derives from charges raised according to the capital value of residential 
properties which have been classified into nine valuation bands, based on market values 
estimated at 1991 prices. In order to calculate the total yield from council tax in a year, it is 
necessary to convert the number of dwellings in each band to an equivalent number of Band D 
dwellings.  The tax base calculation is derived by first multiplying the estimated number of 
domestic properties in each tax band less exemptions by a weighting factor.  This result is then 
reduced by a percentage to allow for losses on collection and reductions through appeals. 
 
The calculation of the 2015/16 tax base is shown below: 
 

2015/16 
 
 

Band 

Number of chargeable 
Homes, less 

exemptions and 
discounts 

 
 

Factor 

 
Band D 

equivalents 

A* 1 5/9 - 
A 447 6/9 299 
B 1,721 7/9 1,339 
C 4,913 8/9 4,368 
D 8,635 9/9 8,635 
E 6,041 11/9 7,384 
F 5,386 13/9 7,780 
G 4,698 15/9 7,833 
H 451 18/9 902 

Total 32,293  38,540 

 
New properties Band D equivalent 127 
MOD properties 479 
Reduction in taxbase due to Council Tax Support (1,996) 
Less:  Allowance for non-collection (550) 
Council tax base 36,600 

Collection rate assumed 98.5% 
 

 
 

Page 96



Accounting Policies 

63 
 

Accounting Policies – (Note 2 continued..) 

 
2.1 Basis 
 
The Statement of Accounts has been prepared on a going concern basis.  The accounting 
convention adopted is Historic cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of tangible 
non-current assets and financial instruments. 

2.2. Accruals of income and expenditure 

All transactions of the Council are accounted for in the year in which they take place, not simply 
when the cash payments are made or received. In particular: 
 
- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks 

and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 
- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably 

the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 
- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 

between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

 
- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 

recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made. 

 
- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively 

as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 
 

- Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, 
a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where it is 
doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made 
to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

2.3. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in a 
period of no more than 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
 
In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
payable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 

2.4. Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Page 97



Accounting Policies 

64 
 

 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or 
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

2.5. Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets 

Services, support services and trading accounts are charged with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 
 

- Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 
- Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off, 
and  

- Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisations. However it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue 
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (if it has any borrowings) equal to an 
amount calculated by the authority in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by a contribution in 
the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment 
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.  

2.6. Employee benefits 

Benefits payable during employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They 
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for 
services in the year in which employees render service to the Council.  Where material, an 
accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) 
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which employees can carry forward into 
the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the following 
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is 
charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services but then reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial 
year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
 
Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate 
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept 
voluntary redundancy. These are charged on an accruals basis to the net cost of services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably 
committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers, or making an 
offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require 
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension 

Page 98



Accounting Policies 

65 
 

fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the 
pensions’ reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement 
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund, and 
pensioners, and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Post employment benefits 
Employees of the Council are members of the “Local Government Pension Scheme”, 
administered by Surrey County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees for the Council. 
 
The Local Government Pension scheme 
The local government scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme. 
 
The liabilities of Surrey County Council’s pension fund attributable to the Council are included in 
the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of 
the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by 
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates etc., and 
projections of projected earnings for current employees. 
 
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds (as measured by a “Hymans Robertson” 
corporate bond yield curve constructed based on the constituents of the iBoxx AA corporate 
bond index). 
 
The assets of Surrey County Council’s pension fund attributable to the Council are included in 
the Balance Sheet at their fair value; quoted securities at current bid price; unquoted securities at 
professional estimate; unitised securities at current bid price, and property at market value. 
 
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 

Service costs comprising: 
- Current service cost - The increase in liabilities as a result of the number of years of 

service earned this year - allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the services for which the employees worked. 

 
- Past service cost - The increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose 

effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 
part of Non-distributed Costs. 

 
- Interest cost - The expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as 

they move one year closer to being paid - debited to the financing and investment income 
and expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
Re-measurements comprising: 
- Expected return on assets - The annual investment return on the fund assets 

attributable to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return - 
credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
- Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments - The result of actions to relieve the 

Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of 
benefits of employees, debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-distributed Costs. 

  

Page 99



Accounting Policies 

66 
 

- Actuarial gains and losses - Changes in the net pension’s liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions are debited to the pension’s 
reserve.  

 
Contributions paid to Surrey County Council’s pension fund 
Cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities, not 
accounted for as an expense. 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in 
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the 
pensions reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the pension reserve 
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary benefits 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in 
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any 
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for 
using the same policies as are applied to the local government pension scheme. 

2.7. Events after the Balance Sheet date 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those happenings, favourable or unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is 
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 
 

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

 
- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of 

Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and estimated 
financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 

2.8. Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract which gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument in another entity. 
 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and 
are carried at their amortised cost.  The fair value of trade payables is taken to be the invoiced or 
billed amount.  
 
Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the 

Page 100



Accounting Policies 

67 
 

carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the 
life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 
 
For most of the borrowings that the Authority has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the 
year according to the loan agreement. 
 
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has 
taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or 
exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or 
added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an 
adjustment to the effective interest rate. 
 
Financial assets 
Financial assets are classified into two types: 
 

- Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments, but are not quoted 
in an active market. 

- Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 
determinable payments. 

 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. 
They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. The fair value of trade receivables is 
taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.  
 
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the 
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For 
most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for 
the year in the loan agreement.  
 
Where the Council makes a loan at less than market rate these are called soft loans. When 
these are made, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(charged to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that will be foregone 
over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal. 
Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of 
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to 
increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that 
the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial 
year – the reconciliation of the amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is managed 
by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made 

Page 101



Accounting Policies 

68 
 

to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present 
value of the future cash flows discounted at the asset’s effective interest rate. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited/debited to the 
Financing and Investment line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Available-for-sale assets 
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried 
at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset 
multiplied by the effective rate of the instrument.  For most of the loans that the Council has 
made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 
receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. Where there 
are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council. 
 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the available-for-sale reserve and the gain/loss 
is recognised in the surplus or deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets. The 
exception is where impairment losses have been incurred – these are debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale 
Reserve.  
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payment due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value 
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the 
asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted 
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any 
shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal 
repayment and amortisation). 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in 
the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 
impairment losses). 

2.9. Foreign Currency Transactions 

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the 
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction 
was effective.  Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year end, they are 
reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31st March.  Resulting gains or losses are recognised in 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Page 102



Accounting Policies 

69 
 

2.10. Government grants and other contributions  

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 
 
- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to payment, and 
- the grants and contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by 
the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to 
the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution 
is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or taxation 
and non-specific grant income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

2.11. Business Improvement Districts 

A Business Improvement District (BID) Scheme operates in Camberley town centre.  Collectively 
Camberley is made up of all the businesses in the town centre and aims to encourage people to 
visit the town centre and use the fantastic range of shops, entertainment and business services 
that it has to offer.  
 
The scheme is funded by a BID levy paid by the town centre non-domestic ratepayers.  The 
Council acts as the agent responsible for the collection of the BID levy.     

2.12. Community Infrastructure Levy 

The Council has elected to charge Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  The levy will be 
charged on new builds (chargeable developments for the Authority) with appropriate planning 
consent.  The Council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge.  The income 
from the levy will be used to fund a number of infrastructure projects to support the development 
of the area.  
 
CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement 
date of the chargeable development in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
in accordance with the accounting policy for government grant and contributions set out above.  
CIL charges will be largely used to fund capital expenditure.  However, a small proportion of the 
charges may be used to fund revenue expenditure. 

Page 103



Accounting Policies 

70 
 

2.13. Heritage Assets 

Heritage Assets are assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations 
because of their cultural, environmental or historical associations. Heritage Assets were 
recognised as a separate class of assets for the first time in the 2011/12 financial statements in 
accordance with adoption of FRS30 and constitutes a change of accounting policy. 
 
In 2012/13 the Civic Regalia was reviewed and revalued to ensure adequate insurance coverage 
was in place. This resulted in an increase of value of £0.058m to £0.107m. 
 
The carrying amount of Heritage Assets is reviewed where there is evidence of impairment e.g. 
where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage, or where doubts arise as to its 
authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Council’s 
general policies on impairment – see note 2.5 in this summary of significant accounting policies. 
 
Any disposals of Heritage Assets are accounted for in accordance with the Council’s general 
provisions relating to the disposal of property, plant, and equipment.  Disposal proceeds are 
disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are accounted for in 
accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure and capital 
receipts (see below). 

2.14. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 
controlled by the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) are capitalised when 
it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset 
to the Council. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised when it is demonstrable that the project is technically 
feasible and intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the 
Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being 
able to sell or use the asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as 
attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase 
(research expenditure cannot be capitalised).  
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost, and are fully amortised in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the expense was incurred. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation costs are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains 
and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

2.15. Investment property  

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery 
of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the 
amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. 
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 

Page 104



Accounting Policies 

71 
 

year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same 
treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

  
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. 
However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements 
to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 

2.16. Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant and equipment from the lessor to 
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
The Council as Lessee 
 
Finance leases 
The Council does not currently have any finance leases where it is the lessee. 
 
Operating leases 
Rentals paid under operating lease are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from the use of the leased property, plant 
and equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease; even if this 
does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of 
the lease). 
    
The Council as Lessor 
 
Finance leases 
The Council does not currently have any material finance leases where it is the lessor. 
 
Operating leases 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on 
a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments 
(e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and 
charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

Page 105



Accounting Policies 

72 
 

2.17. Overheads and support services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or 
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of 
Practice 2015/16 - (SeRCoP). 
 
The total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services 
are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 
 
- Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multifunctional, 

democratic organisation. 
- Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring 

early and any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-operational properties. 
 
These two categories are defined in SeRCoP and accounted for as separate headings in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Cost of 
Services. 

2.18. Property, plant and equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 
during more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 
 
Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council; and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. A de-minimis level of £10,000 (per individual item, or group of items forming a 
scheme where applicable) on property, plant and equipment is applied to capitalisation. 
Expenditure that (a) falls below the de-minimis level and (b) maintains but does not add to an 
asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 
 
Measurement 
Assets are initially measured at cost comprising: 

- the purchase price, 
- any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for 

it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, and 
- the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 

which it is located. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of 
the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Authority. 
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the donated assets account. Where 
gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

Page 106



Accounting Policies 

73 
 

- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost; 
- all other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 

existing use (existing use value – EUV) 
 
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value. 
 
Assets included in the balance sheet at fair value are revalued on a rolling basis within a five 
year timeframe.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits in the Revaluation Reserve to 
recognise unrealised gains. Gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously 
charged to a service revenue account. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are treated as follows: 

- where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of an asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

- where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since the 1st April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset is 
impaired. Where indications exist and possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.   
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are treated as follows: 

- where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance ( up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

- where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of an asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of 
the original loss, and adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not 
been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land  and certain community assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction) 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

- buildings – straight-line method over the useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer 
- plant and equipment, other than vehicles – straight-line method over the useful life of the item 
- vehicles – reducing balance method over the useful life of the asset 
- infrastructure –straight line method over useful life of the item 
- intangibles – 100% in year of purchase 

Page 107



Accounting Policies 

74 
 

  
Where a property, plant or equipment asset has major components whose cost individually is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the 
Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
 
Component Accounting 
Component accounting is required for any asset that is enhanced, acquired or revalued from 1st 
April 2010.  From this date, any significant component part of an asset that has a different useful 
life to other parts of the asset will be depreciated separately.   Where a component is replaced or 
restored the carrying amount of the old component shall be derecognised. This will only be 
considered for assets over £1m or which have capital spending greater than £0.2m. 
 
As at the 31st March 2016 there have been no material components recognised that have a 
significantly different useful life from that of the asset. 
 
Disposals and Non-current assets held for Sale  
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continued use, it is classified as an asset held 
for sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower 
of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair 
value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up 
to the amount of any losses previously recognised in the surplus or deficit on provision of 
services. Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale they are reclassified 
back to non-current assets. These are valued at the lower of their carrying amount, before they 
were classified as held for sale (adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would 
have been recognised had they been classified as held for sale) and their recoverable amount at 
the date of the decision not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not classified as assets held for sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet 
(whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the “Other 
Operating Expenditure” line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of 
a gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.  
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The 
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only 
be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to 
borrow – the capital financing requirement.  Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets 
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated 
to the Capital Adjustment Account from the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Page 108



Accounting Policies 

75 
 

2.19. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or 
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For 
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making 
of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, 
and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to 
settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance 
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year. Where it becomes 
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower 
settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant 
service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, if the Council settles the 
obligation. 
 
Contingent Assets 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised into the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also 
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 

2.20. Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts from the General Fund Balance 
in the Movement in the Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is 
incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
This reserve is then appropriated back to the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement so that there is no charge against council tax for the expenditure. 
 

Page 109



Accounting Policies 

76 
 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and so do not represent usable resources to the 
Council. These reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 

2.21. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where 
the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources 
or by borrowing, a transfer in Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance 
to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no 
impact on the level of council tax. 

2.22. Inventories and long-term contracts 

 Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement being charged in the year during which the cost of goods or services 
were received or provided. 

2.23. Value Added Tax (VAT) 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 

Page 110



Glossary of Terms 

77 
 

General Glossary 
 
Carrying amount 
The amount at which an asset is recognised in the balance sheet after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

 
Cash 
Comprises cash in hand and demand deposits. 

 
Cash equivalents 
Short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 

Class of property, plant and equipment 
Grouping of assets of a similar nature and used in the Council’s operations. 

 
Cost 
The amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to 
acquire an asset at the time of acquisition or construction. 

 
Costs to sell 
The incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (or disposal group), 
excluding finance costs. 

 

Creditor 
The money that the council owes to third parties for goods and services it has received but not 
paid for at the end of the accounting period. 

 
Current asset 
An asset that is intended to be sold within the normal operating cycle.  The asset is held primarily 
for the purpose of trading or the Council expects to realise the asset within 12 months after the 
reporting date. 
 

Debtors 
Financial assets not traded in an active market with fixed or determinable payments that are 
contractual rights to receive cash or cash equivalents. 
 

Depreciable amount 
The cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less residual value. 
 

Depreciation 
The systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

 
Earmarked Reserves 
Earmarked reserves are a means of building up funds to meet known or predicted future 
requirements; although accounted for separately they remain legally part of the General 
Fund. 

The Council has the following Earmarked Reserves:  

a) Capital Fund – this reserve is sourced from revenue to support capital expenditure  
 

Page 111



Glossary of Terms 

78 
 

b) Affordable Housing -  this fund is made up of contributions received from developers who 
are unable to provide affordable housing on the site of their development.  The fund will 
enable the Council to provide affordable housing elsewhere. 

 
c) Atrium Public Art – this fund was set up to meet the on-going maintenance and insurance 

costs of the project. 
 

d) Atrium S106 Agreement – this fund is made up of the developer contributions towards Town 
Centre Management Improvements as part of the Atrium Development legal agreement. 
 

e) Blackwater Valley Developer’s Contributions – this is a sum held to contribute towards the 
maintenance costs of the Blackwater Valley leisure projects. The balance includes 
miscellaneous contributions from developers. 

 
f) Chewing Gum Machine – this fund was set up from S106 income, to fund the projected 8 

year life of the machine to cover the running costs and replacement of the machine. 
 

g) Chobham and Town Team Partnership – A fund, granted by the Department of 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG), is held on behalf of Chobham BEE (Chobham 
Better Experience for Everyone) for planning and implementing improvements to Chobham 
High Street.  

 
h) Community Fund 2002 – this fund is to make grants to community based organisations. This 

fund also includes the environmental bursary, as the balance was transferred into the fund as 
per the Executive 2nd October 2007, minute 066/E refers.   

 
i) Community Infrastructure Levy – This reserve holds balances relating to the timing 

differences between collection of the levy and the allocation of spending. 
 

j) Commuted Sums – these funds are contributed by developers for the maintenance of open 
spaces and amenities.  

 
k) Crime and Disorder Partnership – the Crime and Disorder Act 1999 required a partnership 

to be set up to improve community safety. This money will be used to fund the activities of 
mutual benefit to the whole partnership. 

 
l) Deepcut Village Centre: Alma Dettingen – this is a sum held to contribute towards 

structural maintenance and the eventual refurbishment of this community facility. 
 

m) Frimley Lodge Park 3G Pitch – fund set up to meet the costs of replacing the playing 
surface as required. 
 

n) Heatherside: Multi-Use Games Area – the Safer Surrey Heath partnership set aside 
£150,000 to fund a multi user games area in Surrey Heath.  This is a facility where various 
ball games can be played in a safe environment. 

 
o) Insurance Reserve Fund - this fund has been set aside for two reasons: 

• in connection with the close of trading of the Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) and 
the potential contribution towards costs  

• to deliver a risk management policy including risk management, business continuity 
and health and safety. 

 
p) Land Drainage – this fund finances the land drainage programme. 
 

Page 112



Glossary of Terms 

79 
 

q) LLC Personal Search Revocation – this fund is to finance claims for refunds of fees, paid by 
way of Personal Searches of the Land Charges Register from 2005 to August 2010.  The 
settlement process is ongoing. 

 
r) New Burdens Fund – funding received from the DCLG in recognition of additional 

resources/works required by local authorities under the Localism Act. 
 

s) Old Dean Toddlers Playground – this fund has been set up for this project from payments 
received from The Accent Foundation, Frimley Fuel Allotments, Beacon Church and parents 
support group for the installation of the playground and future maintenance. 
 

t) Personalisation and Prevention Partnership – funding provided by Surrey County Council 
(SCC) to enable the Council to invest in projects which through improved efficiency and 
increased income will benefit the older community. 
 

u) Planning S106 Agreements – this fund reflects developer contributions collected to fulfil 
specific financial obligations contained in S106 Agreements and are to be used for specific 
projects and purposes as detailed in the Section 106 Agreements. 

 
v) Planning Tariff Contributions – this fund reflects developer contributions collected via the 

Surrey Heath Developer Tariff Scheme for the provision of additional infrastructure projects in 
the borough in order to mitigate the impact of new development on local infrastructure. 

 
w) Property Maintenance – this fund is used to finance the planned preventative maintenance 

programme for the council’s properties. 
 

x) Recycling/Refuse Equalisation - this fund has been set up to mitigate the effect of any fall in 
prices for recycled materials in future years. 

 
y) Remediation Fund – this fund is used to fund works to restore land following illegal 

occupation. 
 

z) SANGS (Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space) - this fund was set up from developer 
contributions to fund the long term costs of mitigation for the Special Protection Areas (SPA).  
The Earmarked Reserve represents agreements for which the Council acts as the Principal.  
The Council also acts as Agent for 2 further SANGS agreements which is shown elsewhere in 
these Financial Statements. 

 
aa) Surrey Family Support Programme – this fund is used to finance the Troubled Families 

Project until 2020.  It is funded by Surrey County Council using government grant funding. 
 
bb) Windle Valley Well Being Centre – this fund was used to provide support to people living in 

Surrey Heath who are in need of advice, information and assistance regarding memory 
problems, confusion and dementia. 

 

Employee benefits 
All forms of consideration given by a Council in exchange for service rendered by employees. 

 

Fair Value 
The amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an 
arm’s-length transaction. 
 
For land and buildings: fair value is to be interpreted as the amount that would be paid for the 
asset in its existing use. 
 

Page 113



Glossary of Terms 

80 
 

For investment property: fair value is to be interpreted as the amount that would be paid for an 
asset in its highest and best value – i.e. market value. 

Fair value less costs to sell 
The amount obtainable from the sale of an asset, in an arm’s-length transaction, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less costs of disposal. 

 
Finance lease 
A lease that transfers substantially all risks and rewards that are incidental to ownership of an 
asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. 

 
Financing activities 
Activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the principal received from or 
repaid to external providers of finance. 

 
Heritage Assets 
A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental 
qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture. 

 
Historical cost 
Deemed to be the carrying amount of an asset as at 1 April 2007 or at the date of acquisition, 
whichever date is the later, and adjusted for subsequent depreciation or impairment (if 
applicable). 
 

Impairment loss 
The amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 
Investment property 
Property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both) held solely to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or both, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes, or sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

 
Investing activities 
Acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in cash 
equivalents. 

 
Lease 
An arrangement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee, in return for a payment or series of 
payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed period. 

 

Non-current asset 
An asset that does not meet the definition of a current asset. 

 
Operating activities 
Activities of the council that are not investing or financing activities. 

 
Operating lease 
A lease other than a finance lease. 

 

Other comprehensive income and expenditure 
Comprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments that are not 
recognised in the surplus or deficit on the provision of services as required or permitted by the 
code. Examples include changes in revaluation surplus, actuarial gains and losses on defined 
benefit plans, and gains and losses on re-measuring available-for-sale financial assets. 

Page 114



Glossary of Terms 

81 
 

Other long-term employee benefits 
Employee benefits, other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits, which do not 
fall due wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service. 

 
Property, plant and equipment 
Tangible assets, i.e. assets with physical substance, that are held for use in the production or 
supply of goods and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and expected 
to be used during more than one period. 

 
Reclassification adjustments 
Amounts reclassified to surplus or deficit on the provision of services in the current period that 
were recognised in other comprehensive income and expenditure in the current or previous 
periods. 
 

Recoverable amount 
The higher of fair value less costs to sell (i.e. net selling price) and its value in use of an asset. 
 

Residual value 
The estimated amount that the Council would currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after 
deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and condition 
expected at the end of its useful life. 
 

Short term employee benefits 
Employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that fall due wholly within 12 months after 
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. 
 

Termination benefits 
Employee benefits payable as a result of either: 
 
The Council’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement 
date; or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. 

 
Useful life 
The period which an asset is expected to be available for use by the Council. 

 
Value in use 
Of a non-cash-generating asset it is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential. 
Of a cash-generating asset it is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived 
from an asset. 
  

Page 115



Glossary of Terms 

82 
 

Pension Glossary 

Actuarial gains and losses 

Comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial 
assumptions and what has been actually incurred), and the effects of changes in actuarial 
assumptions. 

Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund 

Assets (other than non-transferable financial instruments issued by the reporting entity) that are 
held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the Council and exists solely to pay or fund 
employee benefits, and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not 
available to the council’s own creditors (even in bankruptcy), and cannot be returned to the 
Council, unless either: 
 

• the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit 
obligations of the plan or the council, or 

 

• the assets are returned to the Council to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid. 

Current service cost 

The increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee 
service in the current period. 

Defined benefit plan 

Post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans. 

Defined contribution plans 

Post-employment benefit plans under which the Council pays fixed contributions into a separate 
entity (a fund) and which have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if 
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service 
in the current and prior periods. 

Interest cost 

The increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises 
because the benefits are one period closer to settlement. 

Past service cost 

The increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior 
periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment 
benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past service costs may be either positive (where 
benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced). 

Plan assets 

Comprise: 

Page 116



Glossary of Terms 

83 
 

 

• assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund, and 
 

• qualifying insurance policies. 

Post employment benefits 

Employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after completion of 
employment. 

Post employment benefit plans 

Formal or informal arrangements under which the Council provides post employment benefits for 
one or more employees. 

Present value of a defined benefit obligation 

The present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future payments required to 
settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods. 

Qualifying insurance policy 

An insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in IAS 24 related 
party disclosures) of the Council, if the proceeds of the policy: 
 

• can be used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan, and 
 

• are not available to the Council’s own creditors (even in bankruptcy) and cannot be paid 
to the Council, unless either the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed 
for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit obligations, or the proceeds are 
returned to the council to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid. 

Return on plan assets 

Interest, dividends and other revenue derived from the plan assets, together with realised and 
unrealised gains and losses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan and less 
any tax payable by the plan itself. 

Vested employee benefits 

Employee benefits which are not conditional on future employment. 
 

Page 117



Annual Governance Statement 

84 
 

Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 

Scope of Responsibility 

Surrey Heath Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty 
under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, 
and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.  
 

Surrey Heath Borough Council has developed, approved and adopted a code of corporate 
governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/ SOLACE Framework 
“Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”. A copy of this code is on the Council’s 
website at www.surreyheath.gov.uk or can be obtained from the Council Offices, Surrey Heath 
House, Knoll Road, Camberley, Surrey. This statement explains how the Council has complied 
with the code and also meets the requirements of Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 
2011, regulation 4(3) which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance 
Statement. 

The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, cultures and values by 
which the authority is directed and controlled and  its activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads its communities. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of 
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 
appropriate services and value for money. 
 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage 
risk to an acceptable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and 
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they 
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 

The governance framework has been in place at Surrey Heath Borough Council for the year 
ended 31st March 2016 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. 

The Governance Framework 

There are a number of key elements and processes that comprise the Council’s governance 
arrangements, which are set out below: 
 

  

Page 118



Annual Governance Statement 

85 
 

Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and intended 
outcomes for citizens and service users 
 

• The Council’s key priorities and objectives are included in the Council’s “2020 strategy” 

which covers the 10 years to 2020.  This is the Corporate Plan. 

 

• The Corporate Plan and Key Priorities feed into the Annual Plan which sets out the 

financial and performance objectives of each service. These are monitored on a six 

monthly basis and reviewed by the Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee in a 

publically available document.   

 

• The Council’s Constitution, decision making structure and arrangements; schedule of 

meetings and associated agendas and minutes are publically available in accordance 

with regulations to encourage public attendance and involvement as appropriate. 

 
Reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the authority’s governance 
arrangements 
 

• The Corporate Plan is reviewed every three years to take account of progress against the 

key priorities. This review takes account of any implications for the Council’s governance 

arrangements with appropriate amendments being made as necessary.  

 
Translating the vision into objectives for the authority and its partnerships 
 

• The Corporate Plan sets out clear objectives to deliver the council’s key priorities and 

vision. All decisions made by the Council demonstrate how they support the Council’s key 

objectives and priorities. 

 
Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance 
with the authorities objectives and for ensuring they represent the best use of resources 
and value for money 
 

• Performance progress is tracked regularly through monitoring of key performance 

indicators, service tasks and projects. Progress against the Council’s Annual Plan is 

reported on a six monthly basis to the Executive and the Performance and Finance 

Scrutiny Committee. The Council’s Performance Management system (TEN) is 

maintained online and is available for review by members and officers.   

 

• Regular financial reporting to Management Board and Members assists the monitoring of 

council expenditure against budgets which have been set to enable Corporate Plan 

objectives to be met. 

 
Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-executive, 
scrutiny and officer functions with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for 
effective communication 

 

Page 119



Annual Governance Statement 

86 
 

• Roles and responsibilities of the Executive, the Council, Overview and Scrutiny and all 

the committees of the Council, along with officer functions are defined and documented, 

with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication within the 

Council’s Constitution.  

 
Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of 
behaviour for members and staff  
 

•  Codes of Conduct defining the standards of behaviour for members, staff, our partners and      

the community have been developed and communicated and are available on the Council’s 

website and intranet site. These include Members’ Code of Conduct, Code of Conduct for 

Staff, Planning Code of Practice for Councillors and Officers, Anti-fraud and Corruption 

Policy, Member and Officer Protocols and regular performance appraisals. 

 

• The Audit and Standards Committee promotes standards within the Council and receives 

reports from the Monitoring Officer. It also hears and determines complaints against Members 

arising out of alleged breaches of the Members Code of Conduct. It also considers 

dispensations in certain circumstances. 

 
Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme of 
delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions 
are taken and the processes and controls required to manage risks 
 

• The Constitution is regularly reviewed and updated by the Governance Working Group. The 

Constitution is available on the Council’s website.  

 

• The Council has established policies and procedures to govern its operations. Key within these 

are the Financial Regulations, Procurement Strategy and Contract Standing Orders, Risk 

Management Strategy, Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers, Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

Policy, Bribery Policy and Procedure, Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure and Human 

Resources policies. Ensuring compliance with these policies is the responsibility of everyone 

throughout the Council. These key controls are subject to periodic review, including that by 

Internal Audit, and are updated to ensure that they are relevant to the needs of the 

organisation.  

 

• Contract Standing Orders set out the rules governing the procurement process to ensure that 

value for money is achieved whilst meeting all legal and statutory requirements and minimising 

the risk of fraud or corruption. The Council’s Procurement Strategy is a high level view of how 

to promote effective procurement across the whole organisation.  

 

• A risk management framework has been in place across the Council for some years with the 

objective of embedding effective risk management practices at both strategic and operational 

levels. The Corporate Risk Management Register is reviewed on an annual basis and 

approved by the Performance and Finance Committee. A risk section is included in all 

Executive reports to ensure that it has been properly considered.  

 

Page 120



Annual Governance Statement 

87 
 

• The Council reviewed and updated its Financial Regulations during the year to ensure that they 

were up to date and aligned with the new financial system. They were adopted by Council and 

the new set will be published shortly, and refresher training is planned to be given to staff.  

 
Reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying and managing risks and 
demonstrating clear accountability 
 

• The corporate risk group meet regularly to update the corporate risk register and to ensure that 

identified risks have mitigation processes in place and clear lines of responsibility. This is then 

discussed with the Council’s Management team and presented to Members. 

 
Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are developed and 
maintained 
 

• The Council has in place an Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy and this has been communicated 

to all staff. It also forms part of the induction process for new staff.  The Council has a 

Corporate Fraud team responsible for investigating Benefit fraud, corporate fraud and 

Members’ Code breaches. The team embed the anti-fraud culture by training generally. 

Members of the team are fully trained to Police and Criminal Evidence Act standard.  

 
Ensuring effective management of change and transformation 
 

• All change and transformation is managed by the Council’s Transformation service. The head 

of Paid service has delegated authority to make changes provided that there is no increase in 

head count. Any other changes are approved by the Council’s Transformation Board consisting 

of 3 Executive Members and the Council’s Management Board. At the start of the process, 

managers are required to prepare a report setting out the reasons for the transformation, the 

benefits it will bring, resource implications and any risks for the board to consider.  Once 

complete a final report has to be submitted to the board stating what the outcomes of the 

transformation were.  

 

• The Council has established a “Land and Property Board” chaired by the Chief Executive and 

consisting of the Section 151 Officer, Leader and Deputy Leader in order to drive forward  the 

agenda presented by the Council’s Key Priority 2.  

 
The Council’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (2010). 
 

• The Council’s financial management arrangements conform to CIPFA standards. The 

Executive Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) has statutory responsibility for the proper 

management of the Council’s finances and is a member of the Council’s Management Board. 

The management of the Council’s finances within departments is devolved to Executive Heads 

of Service through the Scheme of Delegation. Service managers further devolve decision 

making to managers and business unit managers. 

 

Page 121



Annual Governance Statement 

88 
 

• The Finance Team and internal audit provide detailed finance protocols, procedures, guidance 

and training for managers and staff. The structure of the finance team ensures segregation of 

duties and all committee reports are reviewed by the service. 

     
Ensuring the authority’s assurance arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 
 

• The internal audit function is an independent appraisal process, the manager of which has 

direct access to the Chief Executive, Members through the Audit & Standards Scrutiny 

Committee and External Audit. It undertakes reviews which provide management with a level 

of assurance on the adequacy of internal controls and of risks to the Council’s functions / 

systems. Throughout the year, the internal auditors have performed a wide range of reviews 

covering both financial areas as well as service/business functions.  The conclusion is 

normally a report that is produced for management, which includes an assessment of the 

level of assurance that can be derived from the system of internal controls related to the 

service that is reviewed. Reports also offer an action plan recommending areas for 

improvement. The Council’s internal audit team works towards the Standards provided by the  

IIA’s International Professional Practices Framework.  

 
Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the Monitoring Officer 
function 

• The Council has appointed its Head of Legal Services as Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring 

Officer is a member of the Council’s Corporate Management Team and the Governance 

working group. The Monitoring Officer can also call upon the resources of the Council’s legal 

team, internal audit and Investigations teams as required.  

 

• The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring compliance with established policies, 

procedures, laws and regulations. The Monitoring Officer may report to the full Council if she 

considers that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or 

maladministration. Such a report will have the effect of stopping the proposal or decision 

being implemented until the report has been considered.  No reports have been necessary in 

recent years. 

 
Ensure effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the Head of Paid Service 
function 
 

• The Council has designated the Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service 

 
Undertaking the core functions of an Audit Committee, as identified in CIPFA's Audit 
Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities  
 

• The role of the Audit & Standards Committee is set out in the Constitution and one of its key 

roles is to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 

framework and the associated control environment. It is a committee comprising 7 Members, 

independent of the Executive. It oversees the internal audit function and considers all 

relevant reports of the external auditor. It has the power to refer matters of concern to the 

Page 122



Annual Governance Statement 

89 
 

Executive or other committees and to require a response.  The terms of reference for the 

Audit and Standards Committee are reviewed annually.  

 
Arrangements exist to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal 
policies and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful. 
 

• The Monitoring Officer has a duty to report on any actual or likely decision which would result 

in an unlawful act or maladministration. All decisions to be taken by Members are supported 

by a legal assessment provided by the appropriate officer. 

 

• The Council has in place a Responsible Finance Officer under Section 151 of the Local 

Government Act 1972. This role ensures lawfulness and financial prudence of decision 

making, has responsibility for the administration of the financial affairs of the council and 

provides advice on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions, maladministration, 

financial impropriety, probity and budget and policy framework issues. 

 
Whistle-blowing and receiving and investigating complaints from the public 

 

• The Council has in place a Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure whereby staff and others 

can report concerns about various sorts of wrongdoing or alleged impropriety. The policy is 

available on the website and is also proactively communicated to those contracting with the 

council. Informants are requested to be open in their disclosure, but it is recognised that on 

occasions informants will wish to remain anonymous. 

 

• Surrey Heath Borough Council wants to provide the best service it can to the community and 

has a Customer Feedback process in place, which includes complaints, compliments, service 

requests, member contact and comments. All complaints are thoroughly investigated in line 

with the Council’s complaints procedure. A complaints report is provided annually to the 

Performance and Finance committee.  

 
Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to their 
strategic roles, supported by appropriate training 
 

• The Council is committed to developing the skills of both Members and officers in order to 

enable a continuous improvement in the services provided. The Council was recently awarded 

the Gold Investor’s in People standard.   

 

• Officers are covered by the appraisal development scheme which is the mechanism used to 

help ensure that performance and development needs are reviewed on an annual basis.  

 

• There is a full induction process for Members and specific officers have been designated with 

training responsibilities for Members. Members have training provided to reflect their specific 

statutory responsibilities as appropriate.  

 
Clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other 
stakeholders are in place, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation 

Page 123



Annual Governance Statement 

90 
 

 

• The Council ensures that there is community input in its decision making processes. This is 

done by focus groups, workshops, questionnaires, and business breakfasts and members 

interaction with the community. There is a greater reliance on the use of social media as a 

means of communication with the wider community.   

 

• The Council has a well-established and effective consultation function which includes a wide 

range of consultation methods to ensure that as many groups and individuals as possible are 

able to participate. Before undertaking any consultation or communication, action plans are 

completed by the Comms Team to detail exactly how key groups will be targeted. The 

Council delivers an extensive programme of consultations throughout the year. 

 

• The Council also regularly communicates and consults with residents online via the council 

website through social media such as Twitter and Facebook, through local press, through 

blogs, through local forums and organisations and also through the Council own magazine 

“Heathscene” which is published 3 times a year. Council key messages are also 

communicated with all staff on a formal basis several times a year through the staff 

magazine, and through the all staff briefing.  

 

 
Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other group 
working 
 

• Partnership working is governed by agreements, protocols or memoranda of understanding 

relevant to the type of work or relationship involved. The Council’s Monitoring Officer ensures 

that all are fit for purpose and the Council’s interests are protected.  

Internal Audit Statement 

The work of Internal Audit provides one of the levels of assurance to management, along with 
the work of external regulatory bodies such as external audit and Investors in People. This level 
of assurance is obtained from the Internal Audit team undertaking a number of internal audit 
reviews each year based on an annual plan. The audit Plan is agreed by members of the Audit & 
Standards committee annually.   The Plan is derived from the 3 year Audit Strategy which has 
also been approved by Members.  
 
The output and quality of audit work is governed by senior management review of audit working 
papers as well as the internal audit reports. The team also work towards the international 
Standards of the chartered Institute of Internal Auditors or IIA, which all the team are members 
of.    
 
In 2015/16 Internal Audit undertook a number of scheduled audits which were included in the 
Plan as well as a number of ad hoc or unscheduled pieces of work, which formed part of the 
contingency work of the team. Normally the internal audits result in an action plan being agreed 
with management to address areas of weakness and improve overall controls. These action 
plans include a number of recommendations for management. Overdue essential 
recommendations are reported twice yearly to CMT and to Audit & Standards Committee as part 
of an escalation process.  The status of medium or desirable recommendations are also planned 
to be reported to committee in 2016/17.  
 

Page 124



Annual Governance Statement 

91 
 

Limited or nil assurance reports are reported to CMT on a regular basis each year. All limited or 
nil level of assurance reports are normally followed up within 6 to 9 months to check what 
progress has been made by management.  
 
Internal Audit did not issue any limited or nil assurance reports issued in 2015/16. There were no 
significant governance issues identified that would have an adverse effect on the Council’s 
financial statements. The overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit is that the Council’s 
internal control framework is adequate and effective and was managed in 15/16 with due care 
and attention. This is based on the work of internal audit during the course of 15/16 as well as 
the opinions provided by other assurance providers.  
 

  

Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) Statement 
 
The Local Government Data Handling Guidelines requires that all Local Authorities have a board 
member who acts as a SIRO.  Within Surrey Heath, the Executive Head of Finance acts as 
SIRO with the assistance of the Information Governance Manager.  
 
A log is kept of all data breaches and in 2015/16 nine minor internal incidents were recorded and 
dealt with. There were no data breaches during the year that required reporting to the 
Information Commissioner’s Office.  
 
To ensure all staff understand their responsibility for Data Protection, an Information Governance 
e-learning package has been produced. It is mandatory for all staff. A new version is planned for 
2016/17.  
 
The Council achieved re-certification for the Public Sector Network (PSN) in January 2016 after 
passing its health check which is carried out by an external body.  A major achievement during 
the year was the de support of Windows 2003 servers and the migration of systems to a new 
supported version of 20 plus servers.  
 
The Information Security Policy was updated to reflect changes in legislation and practices to 
ensure adequate protection of Council held information. 
 
In line with guidance from the Information Commissioner’s Office Privacy Impact Assessments 
(PIAs) have been carried out for the use of hidden cameras to combat incidents of fly tipping,  
Google Apps and Marketing.  
 
Work has begun on producing an Information Asset Database and updating the retention and 
disposal schedules. The Information Asset database will record the organisations information 
assets, both electronically and in paper format and the risks associated with them. It will record 
the lifecycle of an asset.  
 
Based on the controls in place and the work undertaken during the year the SIRO is of the 
opinion that the Council’s controls over the security and use of information assets were adequate 
for the 2015/16 year. 

Review of Effectiveness  

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of 
its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of the 
effectiveness is informed by the work of senior officers within the authority who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the head of 
internal audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other 
review agencies.  

Page 125



Annual Governance Statement 

92 
 

 
For 2015/16, this review has been undertaken by the Head of Legal Services, together with the 
Executive Head of Finance and Internal Audit.  The group has reviewed how the Council has 
operated in accordance with the Governance Framework and considered its effectiveness. 

Improvements during the Year  

During the year a number of issues arose which relate to the operation of the Governance 
Framework. These issues have been reviewed as follows:  

 
Risk Management Strategy and Process 
 
The Council continued to work with its insurers on identifying Corporate Risks. These were then 
reflected in the corporate risk register if appropriate. The corporate risk management group sits 
on a periodic basis to update corporate risks and to update the Corporate Risk register.  
 
Data Protection 
 
Surrey Heath Borough Council must ensure all personal information is processed in accordance 
with the Data Protection Act 1998. The Information Security policy explains how members and 
officers are expected to comply with the Act. The Council must comply with this policy to ensure 
the Data Protection Act is not breached. Any breach of the Act has serious consequences for the 
organisation and its customers.  
 
Constitution 
 
The Council has agreed a number of changes to the Constitution as recommended by the 
Governance Working Group. These will lead to more efficient decision-making. 

 

Financial Regulations 
These were reviewed and updated during the year to reflect changes brought about by the new 
financial system and to make processes more efficient and consistent.  
 
 
Business Continuity and Emergency Planning 
 
Members of staff continued to receive training related to the operation of the Borough 
Emergency Centre. 
 
Business Continuity Impact Assessments were completed for all services across the Council in 
15/16 and mock test exercises undertaken to test their resilience.  
 

 
HR Polices 
 
HR Policies relating to the Pay Settlement Statement, Disciplinary Policy, Grievance Policy, No 
Smoking Policy, Exceptional Payments procedure, Information Security Policy, People Strategy, 
Leave and Special Leave Policy, and reservist Policy were all reviewed and approved during the 
year.  

 
New Financial System and year end Accounts  
 
The introduction of a new financial system in 2014/15 brought with it a number of issues relating 
to bank reconciliations and budget monitoring. This resulted in an “except for” opinion being 
given by the Council’s External Auditors on the value for money conclusion. In addition it lead to 

Page 126



Annual Governance Statement 

93 
 

a significant delay in finalising the 2014/15 accounts and finishing the audit. In the current year 
these issues have been addressed. The bank reconciliation is performed on a regular basis and 
the Council has taken steps to improve its budget monitoring system although there is still some 
way to go to integrate this fully with the new financial system. The preparation of the accounts is 
proceeding to schedule and the issues that arose last year are not anticipated for this year’s 
audit.  
 
In order to help address the issues that arose with the end of year accounts for 2014/15 and to 
prevent them reoccurring, an action plan on increasing in year assurance for the financial 
accounts has been produced. The report provides Members and senior management with a 
series of recommendations for improving controls over areas such as the Collection Fund, bank 
reconciliations, opening balances, budget monitoring, accruals, adherence to timetable and use 
of internal audit. It is hoped that this report supported by the actions listed above will help to 
deliver a more effective end of year process and set of financial statements.  

 
Governance Issues Reported Last Year 
 
A number of issues were reported in 2014/15 and the following action has been taken to address 
these:  
 

� Human Resources. An annual audit was carried out in 15/16 where HR systems were 

examined in some detail. The majority of weaknesses identified and reported in 14/15 

have since been addressed. System improvements have also been made to Chris 21 

(the mileage and payments system).  

� Parks & Open Spaces. The lease to manage the café at Frimley Lodge park was 

terminated in January 2016 and a new contractor was chosen to run the facility from 

March 2016.   This has addressed the cash handling issues previously identified, and an 

audit to examine the new contractor arranged for 16/17.  

� Camberley Theatre. Significant improvements to cash and security controls operating at 

the theatre have been introduced or upgraded. Catering arrangements with the previous 

catering contractor have also been ended in 15/16 resulting in the café/bar function now 

being managed in house again.  

� Community Services. Re structuring within the team has resulted in efficiencies and a 

tightening up on procedures. The new arrangements with Runnymede BC have been 

introduced and are settling down.  

� Travellers Sites. A number of changes have been made to the arrangements with the 

traveller sites and county and whilst some of these are working well, some are still to 

deliver effectively and the Council continues to work with County to address these.  

� Council’s Centre for Elderly – Windle Valley. A follow up audit was conducted in 15/16 

and the majority of recommended have been actioned. The Council has employed the 

services of a new experienced team leader at the centre.   

Significant Governance Issues  

The overall opinion of the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer is that the Council’s 
governance arrangements are adequate and effective. There are no significant governance 
issues but a number of other issues have been identified and will be addressed through the 
planned work of the Council. 
 
The areas below have arisen from various assessments into the Council’s governance 
arrangements for 2015/16, many actions have already been addressed, and residual issues will 
be addressed in the forthcoming year.  

 

Page 127



Annual Governance Statement 

94 
 

Corporate Processes 
 
Issues arising out of internal audit reviews and action taken to date: 
 
There were no significant issues as a result of internal audit work carried out in 15/16 and there 
were no limited or nil assurance audits issued in year.  

 
Major Projects 
 
The Council continues to be involved in a number of projects and initiatives that are complex in 
nature, dependent upon working with partners to achieve and may require significant Council 
investment and hence an increase in financial risk. These will continue to be monitored closely 
over the coming year.  
 
In Year Assurance 
 
As a result of the issues the Council faced with the 14/15 financial statements an action plan has 
been developed and agreed with management. The recommendations raised in the action plan, 
if implemented, will help to deliver the in year assurance the Council requires to help it complete 
end of year processes and the production of the financial statements.    
 

Assurance Summary 

Good governance is about running things properly. It is the means by which the Council shows it 
is taking decisions for the good of the people of the area, in a fair, equitable and open way. It 
also requires standards of behaviour that support good decision making – collective and 
individual integrity, openness and honesty. It is the foundation for the delivery of good quality  
services that meet all local people’s needs. It is fundamental to showing that public money is well 
spent. Without good governance, councils will struggle to improve services. 
 
From the review, assessment and monitoring work undertaken and supported by the ongoing 
work undertaken by Internal Audit, we have reached the opinion that, overall, key systems are 
operating soundly and that there are no fundamental control weaknesses. 
 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance 
our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for 
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their 
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 

 
             
 
 
 

Karen Whelan 
Chief Executive…………………………………………………………………………….  

 
Councillor Moira Gibson 
Leader of Surrey Heath Borough Council………………………………………………. 

Page 128



Independent Auditor’s Report 

95 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s report to the Members of Surrey Heath Borough Council 

 
To be inserted after Audit Committee Meeting. 

 
 
 

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 2015/16 Financial Statements
	4a ISA260 Audit Report 2015/16
	Slide Number 1
	Contents
	Introduction
	Headlines
	Headlines
	Proposed opinion and audit differences
	Proposed opinion and audit differences
	Significant audit risks
	Significant audit risks
	Judgements
	Accounts production and audit process
	Completion
	VFM Conclusion
	Specific VFM Risks
	2015/16 outturn and 2016/17 budget
	Slide Number 16
	Key issues and recommendations
	Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Audit differences
	Audit differences contd.
	Materiality and reporting of audit differences
	Declaration of independence and objectivity
	Declaration of independence and objectivity contd.
	Audit Independence
	Slide Number 26

	4b Statement of Accounts 2015/16

